# STUDY PAPER TABLE & CHART LISTING AND OUTLINES

Papers, articles, studies, notes, tables and charts by Craig M. White

**Updated 6 January 2025** 



# **Contents**

Introductory Comments	4
Research Methodology	
Writing Style	6
List of Articles by Title	7
List of Tables and Charts	13
List of Articles including Section or Chapter Headings	17
Total number of pages	62
Miscellaneous Items	63
PowerPoint Presentations	64

"Do not go where the path may lead, go instead where there is no path and leave a trail."
- Ralph Waldo Emerson



# Study Paper, Table and Chart Listing and Outlines

Authored by Craig Martin White. Copyright © 2023 Craig Martin White, GPO Box 864, Sydney, Australia 2001. All Rights Reserved.

This work is promoted through History Research Foundation (USA), History Research Projects (Australia) and Friends of the Sabbath (Australia) <a href="https://www.friendsofsabbath.org">www.friendsofsabbath.org</a>

## **History Research Projects**

GPO Box 864, Sydney, Australia 2001 www.originofnations.org

No limitation is placed upon reproduction of this document except that it must be reproduced in its entirety without modification or deletions. The publisher's name and address, copyright notice and this message must be included. It may be freely distributed but must be distributed without charge to the recipient.

Our purpose and desire are to foster Biblical, historical and related studies that strengthen the Church of God's message & mission and provides further support to its traditional doctrinal positions.

## **Introductory Comments**

I have found my niche in writing and researching into various Biblical related areas by filling in gaps left by others, value adding to existing arguments and bolstering those arguments with proofs for traditional beliefs. The nonsense circulating around - including from certain ministers - challenged me to write on various subjects, especially since the 1990s.

These writings can be categorised as:

- Notes
- Bible studies
- Articles
- Papers
- Books

If a subject has already been written and researched, I prefer to avoid duplicating efforts, even if there might be some differences of opinion between me and the research, booklet or book. It is only if I can add value to the subject that I venture into the particular area and writes on it.

For, what is the benefit of going over old ground that has already been explored? It may be self-serving and showing off. But adds little to our body of knowledge. Our corpus of knowledge must be expanded upon with more and more proofs, not rehashing someone else's writings.

Real research comes from pouring through libraries; analysis; critique; examining all points of view; knowing one's subject; cross-referencing; debating with others; contacting organisations and people for further insights/information etc. Such results in quality research and depth. This takes time - the misuse of modern technology bypasses this and leads to very shallow outcomes. There is no excuse for laziness.

## **Research Methodology**

I think it may interest the reader to summarise the research methodology used in assembling my book(s) and papers. Writing any book requires piecing together a large array of information which has to be collected from many sources.

Skills involved in this type of esoteric research has to demonstrate an ability to think issues through clearly and then to present the information in a readable, factual and interesting fashion. It involves the following clear line of thinking and deductive reasoning:

#### 1. Definition:

Identify the task and the information required and plan the research

- Followed by collecting the necessary information (including from archives)
- Resources and tasks required are identified next

#### 2. Strategies to locate information:

- Choose methods
- The range of sources are scoped and listed under logical categories
- I then determined source priorities this was determined by considering which sources were the most important

#### 3. Locating appropriate sources:

- Libraries, institutions, old books, various other documents (and even the internet, but the latter is not that useful for indepth analysis<sup>1</sup>)
- The next step is locating the information within these sources such as reading the material; or scouring through the source and its index, footnotes, bibliography
- Talk with or interview appropriate people (or exchange letters/e-mail); focus groups; surveys
- Create an archive of the information gathered (both hard and soft copy)

#### 4. Utilisation of the collected information:

- Read the information carefully
- Ascertain the use of the information
- This is followed by identifying the major ideas or key words
- Extracting the information photocopying, highlighting, note taking or downloading what is required

### 5. Synthesis of the above:

- Organising the information from the above multiple sources
- Outlining the information sequentially and logically
- Analysing and interpreting data
- Development of the bibliography in an accepted format or by standards
- Present the information in the best format for the book to be published
- Evaluate if the project is completed and ascertain if anything else needs to be added to it or amended
- Undertake proof-reading. Ask others to assist
- Have the final draft of the manuscript reviewed

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> See the excellent expose of this: "Growing internet dependence sapping our life skills", *The Australian*, 29 January 2007 (by Alan Gold)

#### Present the manuscript for finalisation

What is normal for researchers and writers is the enormous amount of data that is gathered for their works. For a single page produced, one might have dozens of papers, articles, books, letters, hand written notes and so forth. All of this must be analysed, understood and pieced together like a jigsaw puzzle.

Any writer will attest to how difficult this is. It is not fun, but one does enjoy the fruits.

I reference as much as I can, given this sort of alternative history. Non-believing historians will not agree with the conclusion of my book(s), but they cannot deny the processes and referencing. Should I have mislaid a reference (which is very rare) here or there, I have to choose whether to continue with a particular argument or put it to one side. Such choices are made dependant upon factors such as whether enough has already been written on a given point.

A rational thought process resulting a clear outcome is essential with this sort of research. I trust that this author has been able to fulfill this and pull together a comprehensive books and papers providing the seeker with appropriate exciting information.

## **Writing Style**

In my articles and books (*In Search of ... the Origin of Nations* and *The Great German Nation*) I have employed a style that is neither scholarly (designed for high end scholastic journals and unintelligible to many) nor chatty and journalistic (styles used in novels and newspapers). Instead, I prefer one that straddles both areas.

Moreover, I also prefer to write succinctly rather than in a verbose manner. Life is too short to write 20,000 words when the same message could be expressed in 5,000. This will lessen the time needed by the already time-consumed reader. In addition, almost everything I write is from a new perspective, building upon the Church of God teachings – not undoing them. In other words, I prefer to value add to them with new research and thinking.

As such most of my writings are not articles for publication in a magazine nor written in a scholarly style – though they could be converted to such rather quickly. Also, let the reader be advised that these are not lengthy commentaries, article style or technical, indepth papers. Rather, in the main, they are Bible studies cross-referencing with other Scriptures and references – aids to assist people with their Bible studies.

NB: these studies are available online <a href="here">here</a> at no cost.

Happy reading!

# **LIST OF ARTICLES BY TITLE**

No.	Title
1.	"Kiss the Son before he becomes angry, and you die where you stand": The Messiah and the Nations
2.	A Genuine Minister with the Heart of a Shepherd? Or Fudging it?
3.	A Guide to sources for studying specific Bible Topics
4.	A Note on Ezekiel's Warning to Israel and Judah
5.	A Note on Prophetic Duality
6.	A Note on Rev. 17:11
7.	A Note on the Hyksos
8.	A Note on the Meaning of the 'Weaker Vessel' in IPet 3:7
9.	A Note on the Name 'Church of God (Adventist)'
10.	A Note on the Name of Christ
11.	A Note on the Seventh Day Baptist Relationship to the Church of God
12.	A Note on the Three Woes
13.	A Note: Were the First-Century Jews Strict Monotheists?' Some references
14.	A Short Note on IIThess 2:6-7 and being "out of the way"
15.	A Short Note on Paul's "thorn in the flesh" What is it?
16.	A Short Note on the Christian Israelite Church and the Sabbath
17.	A Short Outline. Who shall ascend the Mountain of the Lord?
18.	A Woman Rides the Bull Beast
19.	Amazing Temple Symbolism found in Revelation Chapter 3
20.	An Old Look at Prophecy
21.	Are Ministers Priests or Elders? Questions and Answers
22.	Assur and Israel – Contenders for the Birthright
23.	Assur and Nimrod in Conflict: Ancient roots of modern international tensions?
24.	Australia in Prophecy: Australia the Fair – Australia the Condemned
25.	Baptism from the Old Testament Period to the End of Times
26.	Beast and False Prophet: Parallel Scriptures
27.	Biblical References to the Place of Safety
28.	BIWF Correspondence Course Lessons on Prophecy
29.	Book Review: Reshaping the International Order
30.	Books you should read before you die
31.	British and American World Union
32.	Christians Helping Each Other

No.	Title
33.	Church of God History. Tending to the Past. Preserving for the Future
34.	Church of God Timelines (since the late 1700s)
35.	Collection of Notes on Church of God Groups
36.	Collection of Notes: What is the Woman's Head Covering in ICor 11?
37.	Days of the Lord
38.	Did God want or not want Israel to have human King?
39.	Do 7 Tribes of Israel Parallel the 7 Churches of Revelation 2 & 3?
40.	Do Church Eras Exist?
41.	Do Ministers sit on Moses Seat?
42.	Do Sacrifices Provide Forgiveness?
43.	Do You Block the Talents of Others?
44.	Doctrinal Heritage of the Church of God in the Nineteenth Century
45.	Doctrines of the Sabbatarians since the First Century
46.	Does God Micro-manage Christians?
47.	Does the New Testament Extinguish the Need for Circumcision?
48.	Early Doctrines of the Eastern Churches
49.	Europe, the King of the South and the Middle East
50.	Feast of the Nations
51.	German Plans to Invade Britain and America in World Wars 1 and 2
52.	God the Father & Two Divine Beings in the New Testament
53.	God's Glory and Man's Destiny
54.	God's Law and Way of Life Before Moses
55.	Going Soft on Homosexuality
56.	Graded Holiness and Sin
57.	Greenberry G Rupert. Man of God
58.	Greenberry George Rupert. A significant Church of God leader!
59.	Herbert W Armstrong and the Reform of Church Governance
60.	Herbert W Armstrong's Early Beliefs and Doctrines
61.	Herbert W Armstrong Papers Collection
62.	Herbert W Armstrong: Man of God
63.	Herman L Hoeh: Salute to a WCG Pioneer
64.	Historic Church of God Fundamentals of Belief
65.	History of Educational Seminars
66.	History of Prophetic Charts and Tables
67.	History of the Advisory Council of Elders
68.	History of the Extended Arm Salute

No.	Title
69.	History of the Fair Chance Doctrine
70.	History of the Feast of Tabernacles in the Radio/Worldwide Church of God
71.	History of the Place of Safety Doctrine
72.	History of the Plain Truth Magazine
73.	History of the World Tomorrow Broadcast
74.	History of the Worldwide Church of God's Foreign Works
75.	History of Worldwide Church of God Ministerial Conferences
76.	History of Worldwide Church of God Publications and Booklets
77.	How the Israel Identity Truth entered the Church of God
78.	Is it Possible for Christ to have sinned?
79.	Is Matthew 25:31-46 a Spiritual or Literal Parable?
80.	Is the Enslavement of the House of Israel Feasible in the 21st Century?
81.	Isaiah 24 and Deuteronomy 28, 29, 30, 31, 32 Parallels
82.	Israel: The Apple of God's Eye
83.	Israel's Ethnic Heritage
84.	Jealousy and Envy in Scripture
85.	Just what do you mean – 'Christ in you'?
86.	Just what do you mean – "Laodicean Church"?
87.	Just What do you mean 'Watch ye therefore'?
88.	Just What do you mean 'Ezekiel's Message'?
89.	Just What do you mean 'Ezekiel's Message'? (parts 2 & 3)
90.	Law of God Resources & Handbook of Quotes
91.	List of Sabbatarian Groups in Australia
92.	Lists and Charts of the Early Years of the Ministry of Herbert W Armstrong
93.	Matthew 16:19. Commentaries & Parallel Translations
94.	Middle East in Prophecy and Daniel 11 Chart
95.	Modern Identity of the Simeonites
96.	Monitoring Changes in the WCG – a chronological history
97.	Monotheistic Binitarianism/Ditheism and the Exalted Christ in Church of God Doctrine
98.	Mysterious Origin of the King of the North vs King of the South Conflict
99.	Napoleon. A Roman Emperor
100.	Non-SDB Groups c1802 – 1850
101.	Notes on Azazel's Culpability and Separation from God
102.	Notes on the History of Passover Observance Amongst Sabbatarians since the 18 <sup>th</sup> Century
103.	Notes on the independent Sabbatarian Groups (non-SDB) c1802-c1850
104.	Notes on the Pre-Adamic Flood & Resources Supporting the Gap Theory

No.	Title
105.	Notes on the Third Resurrection Doctrine in the Church of God
106.	Old Testament Laws and Spiritual Requirements repeated in the New Testament
107.	Origin of the Albanians
108.	Origins of the Australian Aborigines
109.	Outline of Strategy for Church of God Co-operation
110.	Parallels between each Church Era and the Temple
111.	Passover and Holy Day Observances since the First Century
112.	Pax Germanica & US of Europe OR a New World Order/Babylon Theory – which is the correct doctrine?
113.	Pioneers of the Worldwide Church of God
114.	Ruling Classes in Conflict
115.	Sabbatarian Groups – A Scattered and Little Flock
116.	Second Exodus & The Last Trump
117.	Sequence of End-Time Events Chart
118.	Seven Restorations of the Work of the Church of God
119.	Should we 'move on' from the old doctrines which came into the WCG? Or should we have continuity?
120.	Significant <i>Remnant of Israel</i> Quotes
121.	Spiritual Bastards in Scripture
122.	Spiritual Whoredom in both Old and New Testaments
123.	Status and Role of Nations in the World Tomorrow
124.	Steps in the Resurrection Process
125.	Structure of the Five Books of Psalms chart and notes
126.	Study Notes on Melchizedek
127.	Suggestions for Bible Study Topics
128.	Synagogue and Church: Comparative Structures
129.	The 'Daughter of Zion' and 'My People' in Prophecy
130.	The 'Lord of Hosts' and the 'Elemental Spirits of the Universe'
131.	The Apostasy of the First Century and its End-Time Parallels
132.	The Born Again Teaching in the Light of History and Biblical Salvation Principles
133.	The British Sense of Mission as a Ruling People
134.	The Central Europeans and Japanese
135.	The End-Time Warning Ministry
136.	The Final Year of Herbert W Armstrong
137.	The Herbert W Armstrong and Radio Church of God Historical Trail and Photo Album
138.	The Identity of the German People in Church of God Doctrine
139.	The Invisible Rulers over the Nations
140.	The Judging of the Nations

No.	Title
141.	The Lake of Fire in History and Prophecy
142.	The Last Day of John 7 – The 7 <sup>th</sup> or 8 <sup>th</sup> Day of the Feast?
143.	The Law of Christ and The Mind of Christ
144.	The Meaning of Ecclesiastes 5:1
145.	The Modern Descendants of Ishmael
146.	The Morning of the Resurrection
147.	The Nations of Central Asia and the Middle East
148.	The Place of Safety Doctrine and the Church of God
149.	The Sanctity of Nationhood in the Bible
150.	The Seven Eras of Ancient Israel – Type of the Eras of the True Church?
151.	The Three Heavens chart
152.	The True Roots and Origins of the Scots
153.	The Unity of the Spirit
154.	They have their Reward
155.	True Origin of the Peoples of Eastern Europe
156.	Understanding the Burnt Offering
157.	Was Peter the Leading Apostle?
158.	What does 'worshipping before your feet' mean?
159.	What does "having a relationship" with God and Jesus mean?
160.	What does a Deacon do?
161.	What happens when YOU die!
162.	What is Inspiration?
163.	What is Justice?
164.	What is meant by 'Babylon the Great is fallen, is fallen'?
165.	What is Sound Doctrine?
166.	What is the "Better Resurrection" in the Letter to the Hebrews?
167.	What is the Bottomless Pit?
168.	What is the Day Star?
169.	What the Bible says about False Brethren
170.	What will Israel be doing in the World Tomorrow?
171.	What will the Beast be like? Answers to Questions
172.	When is Deleavening to be Undertaken?
173.	When do the armies of Ezek 38 & 39 invade Israel? A study
174.	When the Bad News finally reaches YOU!
175.	When the Good News finally reaches YOU!
176.	When Utopia finally reaches YOU!

No.	Title
177.	Where are the Edomites today?
178.	Where are the 'Lost' Tribes of Israel in the Modern World?
179.	Where are the Levites Today?
180.	Which Commandments do the Churches of God observer/teach and not observe/teach? And why?
181.	Who are the East Asians, Polynesians and American Indians?
182.	Who are the Germans?
183.	Who are the Japanese?
184.	Who are the Latvians and Lithuanians?
185.	Who are the Mysterious Sukkiim?
186.	Who are the Peoples of Rosh?
187.	Wild Beasts in the Millennium
188.	Wilhelm II. A Type of the Final Emperor
189.	Will the Resurrected Sons & Daughters of God die again?
190.	Will the Saints Rule from Heaven or on Earth?
191.	Will the Temple, Sacrifices & Tribal Allotments be restored during the Millennium?
192.	Youth and their Elders in the Church

# **LIST OF TABLES AND CHARTS**

No.	Title	Comment	Subject	Approx. no. of pages
1.	A Chart Comparing Offices in the Synagogue and the Church		Church	4
2.	A Comparison of Napoleon and Hitler		Prophecy	2
3.	A Comparison of Revelation with Hebrews 12		Bible	4
4.	Abraham's Ancestry and Descendants		Nations	1
5.	Ancient Peoples of the Near East		Nations	1
6.	Assur's Ancestry (Gen 10)		Assyria	1
7.	Assyria in Prophecy. Scriptures Pertaining to Assyria in the Last Days	Contained within <i>Identity of the German Peoples in Church of God Doctrine</i>	Assyria	10
8.	<ul> <li>Beast and False Prophet: Parallel Scriptures</li> <li>Beast</li> <li>False Prophet</li> </ul>		Prophecy	9
9.	Chart comparing Christ, Jehovah, the Angel of the Lord and Michael	Contained within Are Ministers Priests or Elders? Questions and Answers	Bible	17
10.	Chart Comparing offices in the Synagogue with those in the Early Church	Contained within Synagogue and Church: Comparative Structures	Church	2
11.	Chart comparing the roles and duties of Israel with the Church		Church	2
12.	Chart Comparing what a Hireling or Wolf and Elder would put into practice		Church	3
13.	Chart of Christian Functions and Ministerial Offices	Contained within Are Ministers Priests or Elders? Questions and Answers	Church	1
14.	Chart of Church of God and Sabbatarian Connections to Influencers	Contained within The Doctrinal Heritage of the Church of God in the Nineteenth Century	Church	1
15.	Chart of Influencers on the Development of Church of God Doctrines in the Nineteenth Century	Contained within The Doctrinal Heritage of the Church of God in the Nineteenth Century	Church	2
16.	Chart of Several Possible Relationships to Church Eras	·	Church	1
17.	Chart Summarising the Development of WCG Doctrines (Dan 12:4)		Church	4
18.	Church Process Toward Unification. 1858-84		Church	1
19.	Comparing Certain Roman Empire Revivals – Confirmations and Deficiencies		Prophecy	2
20.	Comparing Eden with the Millennium and Feast of Tabernacles		Prophecy	1
21.	Comparing Isaiah 62, 52 and 4 with the Church	Also contained within The 'Daughter of Zion and 'My People' in Prophecy	Prophecy	3
22.	Comparing Leviticus 26 with Daniel 4		Prophecy	3
23.	Comparing the Days of Creation with the Flood		Bible	4
24.	Comparing the Days of Noah with Christ's Prophecies		Prophecy	1
25.	Comparing the Plagues of Exodus with those of Revelation		Prophecy	1
26.	Comparison of Ezekiel 38 & 39 with Revelation 20:7-9	Contained within the study When do the Armies of Ezekiel 38 & 39 Invade Israel?	Prophecy	2
27.	Comparison of Psalm 83 with Daniel 11		Prophecy	2
28.	Comparison of the Beatitudes with the letter of James		Bible	2
29.	Cross-referencing select Scriptures with Matthew 18		Bible	6

No.	Title	Comment	Subject	Approx. no. of pages
30.	Descendants of Nahor and Haran (brothers of Abram)		Nations	1
31.	Early Kings of Germany		Assyria	1
32.	Eden and Sanctuary Symbolism Chart		Typology	10
33.	End-Time Prophetic Events and Historical Precedents Matrix		Prophecy	1
34.	Exoduses Compared		Typology	1
35.	<ul> <li>Feast Day Typology in the New Testament. Pt. 1. Holy Day Charts</li> <li>Holy Feast Day/Book of Revelation Parallels</li> <li>Paul's Epistles to the Churches are each based on a Holy Day</li> <li>Holy Day inferences in the letter to the Hebrews</li> <li>The Book of John is based on the Holy Days</li> <li>Lord's Prayer – an outline of the Holy Days</li> </ul>	This is a collection of charts and information by others. None of these are by me.	Bible	4
36.	Feast Day Typology in the New Testament. Pt2. Holy Day Imagery  Introductory Remarks  Chart – Outline of Reference Works  References  Imagery of the Feast of Tabernacles in the Gospels. Bibliography		Bible	9
37.	First Century Fulfillment of Prophecy as a Type of the End Time		Prophecy	10
38.	Four Horsemen of Revelation		Prophecy	12
39.	How does the Anti-Christ compare with Christ?		Prophecy	1
40.	Isaiah 24 and Deuteronomy 28, 29, 31, 32 Parallels		Prophecy	4
41.	Isaiah Chapter 40. An example of multi-layering of Scripture by comparing their various aspects		Prophecy	9
42.	Israel's Ethnic Heritage		Nations	5
43.	Israel's Second Exodus		Prophecy	2
44.	Jeremiah 9: The Daughter of Zion	Also contained within The 'Daughter of Zion and 'My People' in Prophecy	Prophecy	1
45.	Joshua and Christ: Conquest of the Promised Land Compared		Prophecy	1
46.	Kings of Nineveh		Assyria	1
47.	Line of Cain vs Babylon		Bible	1
48.	List of Different Nations with Similar Names		Nations	1
49.	List of Nations whose Names of Changed in the Bible		Nations	1
50.	List of the Early Kings of Assyria		Assyria	1
51.	List of the Latter Kings of Assyria		Assyria	1
52.	List of the Names of Genesis Ten and Their Meanings		Nations	1
53.	Location of the Hamitic Race		Nations	1
54.	Location of the Japhetic Race		Nations	1
55.	Location of the Nations of the Modern World		Nations	1
56.	Location of the Shemitic Race		Nations	1
57.	Melchizedek and Levitical Priesthoods Compared		Bible	2
58.	Migrations of the Hamitic Race		Nations	1

No.	Title	Comment	Subject	Approx. no. of pages
59.	Migrations of the Japhetic Race		Nations	1
60.	Migrations of the Shemitic Race		Nations	1
61.	Modern Location of the Hamites		Nations	1
62.	Modern Location of the Japhethites		Nations	1
63.	Modern Location of the Shemites		Nations	1
64.	Modern-day Descendants of Edom and Ishmael		Nations	1
65.	Noah's Descendants		Nations	1
66.	Noah's Sons and Grandsons		Nations	2
67.	Parallel or Similar Scriptures to Ezekiel 38 & 39	Contained within the study When do the Armies of Ezekiel 38 & 39 Invade Israel?	Prophecy	1
68.	Parallels between Christ's resurrection and resurrection of the saints	Contained within the article The Resurrection Dawn	Bible	1
69.	Process from Oakes to Cranmer		Church	1
70.	Prophecies Concerning the Nations		Prophecy	3
	Chart: Organised in accordance with the Table of Nations (Genesis 10)			
	<ul> <li>Listing: Organised in accordance with the Tribulation and Day of the Lord Prophecies</li> </ul>			
71.	Radio Church of God and Herbert W Armstrong Historical Trail		Church	6
	<ul><li>Part I (1930s)</li></ul>			
	• Part II (1940s)			
	Part III (References)			
	Part IV (Grave Sites)			
72.	Recent Beast Leaders: Portent for the Future and Final Beast		Prophecy	3
73.	Relevant Chapter in Ezekiel and its Typology for the post-Millennial Period	Contained within the study When do the Armies of Ezekiel 38 & 39 Invade Israel?	Prophecy	2
74.	Research by non-Church of God theologians & researchers supporting Church of		Church	8
	God positions			
75.	Revelation 18 and Associated Scriptures		Prophecy	1
76.	Sequence of End-Time Events Chart		Prophecy	9
77.	Sequence of Events Before, During and After the Millennium		Prophecy	16
78.	Seven Restorations of the Roman System		Prophecy	2
79.	Seven Restorations of the Roman System (repeated patterns)		Prophecy	5
80.	Speculative angelic order chart		Bible	1
81.	Table of Nations		Nations	1
82.	The Chronology of Genesis and Generations of the Patriarchs		Nations	1
83.	The Fulfillments of Genesis 49	Also included under 'List of Articles'	Prophecy	35
84.	The Generations of Adam – The Pre-Flood Patriarchs		Nations	1
85.	The Generations of Noah – the Post-Flood Patriarchs		Nations	1
86.	The Hittite Kings		Assyria	1
87.	The Location of Nations in Old Testament Times		Nations	1

No.	Title	Comment	Subject	Approx. no. of
				pages
88.	The Millennial Reign of the Messiah	Also included under 'List of Articles'	Prophecy	52
89.	The Original Location of the Nations after Babel		Nations	1
90.	The Process of Salvation: From Baptism to Resurrection		Bible	1
91.	The Royal House of Akkad		Assyria	1
92.	The Services and functions of Melchizedek, the High Priest and His Order		Bible	1
93.	The Structure of the Book of Psalms		Bible	4
94.	The Three Heavens		Bible	6
95.	Tribulation & Day of the Lord Comparison and Typology Table		Prophecy	1
96.	WCG Pioneers Timeline		Church	1
Total			Total	356

## LIST OF ARTICLES INCLUDING SECTION OR CHAPTER HEADINGS

Title	Section Headings	Year First Published	Latest Version	Topic	Approx. No. of Pages
"Kiss the Son before he becomes angry, and you die where you stand": The Messiah and the Nations	<ul> <li>Abstract</li> <li>Introductory Comments</li> <li>Psalm 2 as a Prophecy</li> <li>'Kiss the Son' or Else!</li> <li>Rebellions and Judgments during the Millennium</li> <li>Concluding Remarks</li> <li>Appendix One: Extracts from Commentaries         <ul> <li>Keil &amp; Delitzsch Commentary on the Old Testament</li> <li>E.W Bullinger's Companion Bible Notes</li> <li>Treasury of Scripture Knowledge</li> </ul> </li> <li>Appendix Two: Zion in Prophecy and Typology</li> </ul>	2016	2019	Prophecy	55
A Genuine Minister with the Heart of a Shepherd? Or Fudging it?	Introductory Comments     How to 'fudge it' and its consequences - in a few easy lessons     Rebellious     Leadership and Abilities     Behaviours     Abusive     Laziness     Jealousy      Concluding Remarks     Addendum: Shepherds and Sheep	2020	2021	Church of God	7
A Guide to sources for studying specific Bible Topics	<ul> <li>Foreword</li> <li>Table of Contents</li> <li>Foreword</li> <li>Abortion</li> <li>Angels, Demons, Satan</li> <li>Archaeology and the Bible</li> <li>Bible - Its Structure and Chronology</li> <li>Bible Study Helps</li> <li>Captivity Doctrine/Ezekiel's Message</li> <li>Christian and Government</li> <li>Christian Living, Christian and Government etc</li> <li>Church Eras/History of the True Church</li> <li>Church Government</li> <li>Education</li> <li>Family, Male and Female Roles</li> <li>God's Plan/Incredible Human Potential/Mystery of the Ages</li> <li>God's Sacred Calendar</li> <li>Godhead and Christology</li> </ul>	1990	2006	Bible Study	43

Title	Section Headings	Year First Published	Latest Version	Topic	Approx. No. of Pages
	<ul> <li>Healing vs. Pagan Healing Practices</li> <li>Health, Alcohol, Clean and Unclean Meats, Etc.</li> <li>Hebraic Underpinnings if the New Testament</li> <li>History of the Sardis Era</li> <li>Holy Days</li> <li>Identity of the Whore of Revelation</li> <li>Israel's Identity</li> <li>Jesus Christ</li> <li>Land Sabbath, Environment, Attitude Toward (?)</li> <li>Law of God (Including Spirit of the Law; Civil Laws)</li> <li>Laws - Biblical Economics, Tithing Laws</li> <li>Man, Nature of Hell and Heaven</li> <li>Marriage, Divorce and Remarriage</li> <li>Millennial Reign of the Messiah</li> <li>Miscellaneous (e.g. Tongues, Adoption, Judging, Law and Acting Profession)</li> <li>Pagan Days and Customs (e.g. Birthdays, Cremation, Incense, Cross, Heart Symbols, Gambling, Horse Racing etc)</li> <li>Passover</li> <li>Pentecost</li> <li>Political Science/World Events</li> <li>Prayer and Meditation</li> <li>Prophecy</li> <li>Sabbath</li> <li>Sacred Calendar</li> <li>Salvation/Conversion</li> <li>Table of Nations/Origins of the Nations</li> <li>Typology; Nos and Cycles</li> </ul>	Publisned	version		of Pages
A Note on Ezekiel's Warning to Israel and Judah	<ul> <li>Abstract</li> <li>Introduction</li> <li>Background Information</li> <li>To Whom Was Ezekiel Sent: Israel, Judah or Both?</li> <li>Many Israelites joined Judah in Captivity</li> <li>Arguments for Ezekiel Addressing Judah and not Israel</li> <li>Other Scriptures that can be used to support the Interchangeability View</li> <li>Jeremiah and Interchangeability</li> <li>Conclusion</li> <li>Further Reading</li> </ul>	2024	2024	Prophecy	23
A Note on Prophetic Duality	Prophetic Duality	2010	2010	Bible Study	3
A Note on Rev 17:11 (incorporated into <i>The</i> Great German Nation book)	<ul> <li>Introduction</li> <li>Four Holy Roman Empire Revivals</li> <li>The RCC and the Napoleonic Question</li> <li>Two Halves of Napoleon's Empire</li> <li>Comparing Napoleon and Hitler</li> <li>Conclusion: Assyria and the last revival of Rome</li> </ul>	2005	2005	Prophecy	20

Title	Section Headings	Year First Published	Latest Version	Topic	Approx. No. of Pages
	<ul> <li>Various Theories</li> <li>Bibliography and Suggested Reading</li> </ul>				
A Note on the Hyksos	<ul> <li>Egyptians and the Hyksos</li> <li>Who were the Hyksos Apiru?</li> <li>Did Joseph marry an Egyptianitess?</li> <li>Suggested Reading</li> </ul>	2002	2002	Origin of Nations	5
A Note on the Meaning of the 'Weaker Vessel' in IPet 3:7	<ul> <li>Introductory Remarks</li> <li>What Research Reveals</li> <li>Why are false leftist doctrines creeping in?</li> <li>References</li> <li>Comparing Several Translations of the Text</li> <li>Every reference to 'weaker' (Strong's #770, 772) in the New Testament in several Translations</li> </ul>	2005	2006	Bible Study	32
A Note on the Name of Christ	<ul> <li>We should 'preach Christ'!</li> <li>Just what do you mean 'name'?</li> <li>Concluding Remarks</li> <li>What has inspired this article?</li> <li>Bibliography</li> <li>Suggested Reading</li> </ul>	2003	2017	Doctrine	14
A Note on the name 'Church of God (Adventist)'	<ul> <li>Introductory Remarks</li> <li>The Issue</li> <li>Concluding Remarks</li> <li>Bibliography</li> </ul>	2021	2021	Church of God	6
A Note on the Seventh Day Baptist Relationship to the Church of God	<ul> <li>Background Comments</li> <li>The Clarence Orohrelle Dodd (1899-1955) article and other information</li> <li>The William T Voyce Letters</li> <li>Dr Hoeh's changed stance</li> <li>Seven Churches are Seven Distinct Restorations of the Work</li> <li>Final Remarks</li> <li>References</li> <li>Appendix One. "Research Reveals Plain Truth"</li> <li>Appendix Two. "The Plain Truth Responds"</li> </ul>	2016	221	Church of God	37
A Note on the Three Woes and Babylon/Tyre Parallels (incorporated into <i>The Great German Nation</i> book)	<ul> <li>First Woe</li> <li>Second Woe</li> <li>Third Woe</li> <li>Revelation 17 &amp; 18 – Babylon</li> <li>Suggested Reading</li> </ul>	2004	2004	Prophecy	12
A Note: Were the First-Century Jews Strict Monotheists?' Some references	Binitarianism	2006	2006	Doctrine	5
A Short Note on Paul's "thorn in the flesh" What is it?	<ul> <li>Introduction</li> <li>Old and New Testament Revelation</li> <li>The Messenger of Satan</li> </ul>	2009	2012	Bible Study	15

Title	Section Headings	Year First Published	Latest Version	Topic	Approx. No. of Pages
	<ul> <li>Conclusion</li> <li>Appendix: Easton's Bible Dictionary</li> <li>Appendix: Noah's Webster's Dictionary</li> <li>Appendix: International Standard Bible Encyclopedia</li> </ul>		2010,011		
A Short Note on the Christian Israelite Church and the Sabbath	<ul> <li>Introductory Remarks</li> <li>Background to the Christian Israelite Church</li> <li>Conclusion</li> <li>Appendix One: Worldwide News Article</li> <li>Appendix Two: Photograph of Gladys Carnes</li> <li>Appendix Three: E-mails from the Christian Israelite Church</li> <li>Appendix Four: New York Times articles</li> <li>References</li> </ul>	2008	2019	Church of God	17
A Short Note on IIThess 2:6-7 and being "out of the way"	<ul> <li>Introductory Remarks</li> <li>An Old Sermon</li> <li>Final Thoughts</li> <li>Appendix: Information Gleaned from Commentaries</li> </ul>	2018	2019	Church of God	10
A Short Outline. Who shall ascend the Mountain of the Lord?	A Short Outline. Who shall ascend the Mountain of the Lord?	2020	2020	Bible Study	4
A Woman Rides the Bull Beast	<ul> <li>Why Prophecy? A second rate subject?</li> <li>Strange Bulls</li> <li>A Woman Rides the Beast</li> <li>Bibliography</li> </ul>	1996	2022	Prophecy	16
Amazing Temple Symbolism found in Revelation Chapter 3	<ul> <li>Temple Parallels in Revelation 3:7-13</li> <li>The Pillars (Rev 3:12)</li> <li>The Crowns and Feet (Rev 3:11, 9b)</li> <li>The Doors (Rev 3:8)</li> <li>The Keys (Rev 3:7)</li> <li>Doing your part</li> <li>References</li> </ul>	1994	2019	Church of God	16
An Old Look at Prophecy	<ul> <li>Collins' statement about prophecy</li> <li>My response</li> <li>Appendix 1 at the rear listing the consistent and accurate teachings on the rise of a German-led Europe</li> <li>Appendix 2 concerns prophecies relating to Assyria</li> <li>Appendix 3 on the time when Ezekiel 38 &amp; 39 may be applied</li> <li>Suggested reading</li> </ul>	c2001	c2001	Prophecy	25
Are Ministers Priests or Elders? Questions and Answers	<ul> <li>Introductory remarks</li> <li>Synagogue and church</li> <li>A comment on the evolution of church governance structure</li> <li>Questions and answers</li> <li>What sort of governance structure did the Church of God have in the 1930s and 40s?</li> <li>What sort of governance structure did the Church of God have early 1950s-early</li> </ul>	2018	2021		39

Title	Section Headings	Year First Published	Latest Version	Topic	Approx. No. of Pages
	<ul> <li>What sort of governance structure did the Church of God have early 1970s-c1986?</li> <li>Why was the priestly approach eschewed?</li> <li>What was the function of the priests?</li> <li>Did the priests present sermons?</li> <li>What do elders do if they are not priests?</li> <li>What are the qualifications for elders if they are not priests?</li> <li>Where do apostles fit in? Did they function as priests?</li> <li>Doesn't Numbers 27:18-23 mean that ministers are responsible to God only?</li> <li>Do ministers have unlimited power (based on Heb 13:7)?</li> <li>Are ministers above the law?</li> <li>Are Christians priests?</li> <li>Why hasn't there been clarity on this subject?</li> <li>Why do some heap up teachers and have itching ears instead of adhering to the doctrine of the church and elders?</li> <li>As 'priests in training' should Christians be studying god's word earnestly?</li> <li>Concluding remarks</li> <li>Appendix: Chart comparing what a hireling or wolf versus an elder would put into practice</li> <li>Appendix: Chart of Christian functions and ministerial offices</li> <li>Appendix: Extracts from all about water baptism by Herbert W Armstrong</li> <li>Bibliography and suggested reading</li> </ul>				
Assur and Israel – Contenders for the Birthright (incorporated into <i>The Great German Nation</i> book)	<ol> <li>What and Why a Birthright?</li> <li>Line of Cain compared to Babylon</li> <li>The Example of Ishmael and Edom</li> <li>Shem Inherits the Birthright?</li> <li>Assur versus the Line of Arphaxad - another birthright shift?</li> <li>Final Comments</li> <li>Appendix one: Extract from <i>The Royals</i> by Kitty Kelley</li> <li>Appendix two: George Ludwig 1660 – 1727</li> <li>Endnotes</li> </ol>	2002	2005	Origin of Nations	20
Assur and Nimrod in Conflict: Ancient roots of modern international tensions? (incorporated into <i>The Great German Nation</i> book)	<ol> <li>Ancient Rivalries</li> <li>Assur identified in history</li> <li>Earliest Mesopotamia</li> <li>Who was Nimrod in History?</li> <li>Clash of Titans</li> <li>Nimrod's Empire Scatters</li> <li>Two Branches of Cush</li> <li>Mysterious Hungarian Links</li> <li>Endnotes</li> </ol>	2002	2005	Origin of Nations	17
Australia in Prophecy: Australia the Fair – Australia the Condemned	<ul> <li>Historical Background to Australia</li> <li>Australia's Punishment Prophesied!</li> <li>Ezekiel's Warning Message to Australia</li> <li>Taken Captive by the Land of the Rising Sun!</li> <li>Japan – the Tarshish of the East</li> </ul>	2001	2020	Prophecy	32

Title	Section Headings	Year First Published	Latest Version	Topic	Approx. No. of Pages
	Unparalleled Horrors Await Australia     Suggested reading				
Baptism from the Old Testament Period to the End of Times	<ul> <li>Baptism of the Earth</li> <li>Noah's Flood</li> <li>Earth's Coming Baptism of Fire!</li> <li>Old Testament Baptism</li> <li>Is Baptism a Process?</li> <li>Washing of Baptism by the Spirit, Water and Blood</li> </ul>	1998	2002	God's Plan	6
Biblical References to the Place of Safety	<ul> <li>Foreword</li> <li>Quotes from the Pentateuch</li> <li>Quotes from the Former Prophets</li> <li>Quotes from the Writings and Megilloth</li> <li>Quotes from the Latter Prophets</li> <li>Quotes from the New Testament</li> <li>Bibliography</li> </ul>	1986	2006	Prophecy	17
BIWF Correspondence Course Lessons of Prophecy	The Correspondence Course (of which this was only one section), has not been published by the BIWF to date. They asked for me to write one of four modules, but have not gone ahead with it. It seems to be related to the lack of finance.	1992	1992	Prophecy	10
Book Review: Reshaping the International Order	Reshaping the International Order	1997	2006	Church of God	2
Books you should read before you die	Books you should read before you die	2009	2009	Bible Study	2
British and American World Union	<ul> <li>Introduction</li> <li>British Empire and World Leadership</li> <li>Plans for British-American World Hegemony</li> <li>The plans of Cecil Rhodes</li> <li>Other advocates for Anglo-Saxon-Keltic World Union</li> <li>Plans for World Leadership Continue</li> <li>Final Analysis</li> <li>Appendix. Cecil Rhodes, "Confession of Faith" (1877)</li> <li>Appendix. Rudyard Kipling, "The Burial" (1902)</li> <li>Appendix. God and Gold: Britain, America, and the Making of the Modern World by Walter Mead</li> <li>Appendix. The Freemasons</li> <li>Appendix. "Roosevelt and Stalin, blood brothers in arms", The Australian, 2 January 1989, by B. A. Santamaria</li> <li>Appendix. Advocates of Britain's Israelitish World Mission</li> <li>References</li> </ul>	2021	2021	Origin of Nations; Prophecy	57
Christians Helping Each Other	<ul> <li>Helping each other</li> <li>Love for each other</li> <li>Christians edifying/building up one another</li> <li>Christians are supposed to be friends</li> </ul>	2012	2012	Bible Study	6

Title	Section Headings	Year First Published	Latest Version	Topic	Approx. No. of Pages
	<ul> <li>The love for Christian friends</li> <li>Because we love God we are friends</li> <li>Self sacrifice</li> <li>Some things we should not do to one another</li> </ul>				
Church of God History. Tending to the Past. Preserving for the Future	<ul> <li>Introduction</li> <li>Why we need to tend time</li> <li>Lessons learned</li> <li>Conclusioins</li> </ul>	2022	2022	Church of God	3
Church of God Timelines (since the late 1700s)	<ul> <li>Prologue 4</li> <li>Church of God Timelines 8</li> <li>Appendix: 100 Years of Church of God Seventh Day (CG7) History 44</li> <li>Appendix: History of Doctrinal Change in the Church of God, 7th Day 48</li> <li>Appendix: The Hope of Israel vol. 1 no. 1 50</li> <li>Appendix: The Cole Family 51</li> <li>Appendix: A comment on HWA's 1939 article 53</li> <li>Appendix: HWA's article on the Passover and Calendar Calculation 54</li> <li>Appendix: A History of Ambassador University 58</li> <li>Appendix: A History of God Acronyms</li> </ul>	2004	2021	Church of God	101
Collection of Notes on Church of God Groups	<ul> <li>Australia</li> <li>New Zealand &amp; Pacific</li> <li>South Africa</li> <li>East Africa</li> <li>South America</li> <li>British Isles</li> <li>List of Sabbatarian Groups in Australia</li> </ul>	2002	2020	Church of God	25
Collection of Notes: What is the Woman's Head Covering in ICor 11?	• Notes	2012	2012	Bible Study	6
Days of the Lord	<ul> <li>Introductory Comments</li> <li>Day of the Lord in Old Testament Prophecies</li> <li>Day of the Lord in the New Testament</li> <li>The Time of Israel's Redemption</li> <li>The Millennial Reign of the Messiah</li> <li>After the Millennium</li> <li>Day of the Lord Typologically and Spiritually – the 'visitation' of the Lord</li> <li>Concluding Remarks</li> <li>Table 1. Comparing the Various Days of the Lord &amp; Related Forces of Destruction</li> <li>Table 2. Tribulation &amp; Day of the Lord Comparisons and Typology</li> <li>Table 3. Comparing the Days of Noah with Christ's Prophecies</li> <li>Table 4. Comparing Ezekiel with Revelation and other Scriptures</li> <li>Table 5. Comparison of Ezekiel 38 &amp; 39 with Revelation 20:7-9</li> <li>Table 6. Relevant chapter in Ezekiel and its Typology for the post Millennial period</li> <li>Table 7. Comparing the Plagues of Exodus with those of Revelation</li> </ul>	2015	2021	Prophecy	43

Title	Section Headings	Year First Published	Latest Version	Topic	Approx. No. of Pages
	Bibliography and Suggested Reading	i ubiisiicu	VCISION		Of Fages
Is it Possible for Christ to have sinned?	<ul> <li>Introduction</li> <li>The Revelations of Scripture</li> <li>Did Christ possess the holy spirit from conception?</li> <li>Old Church of God teaching</li> <li>Conclusions</li> <li>Bibliography</li> </ul>	2020	2020	Godhead	14
Did God want or not want Israel to have a human king?	Introductory Comments     What God wanted versus what happened     The Judaic Priest-King Line     Concluding Remarks     Addendum: Extracts from W. C. Kaiser Toward an Old Testament Theology     References	2021	2021	Israel	18
Do Church Eras Exist?	<ul> <li>Introduction</li> <li>Just what is an Era?</li> <li>Development of the Church Eras Doctrine</li> <li>A Small, Scattered Flock</li> <li>Why Not Seven Eras?</li> <li>Seven Eras of Ancient Israel</li> <li>Conclusions</li> <li>Select List of old Radio/Worldwide Church of God booklets and articles on Church of God History</li> <li>Audio &amp; Video Presentations on Church of God &amp; Sabbatarian History</li> <li>References</li> </ul>	2019	2019	Church History	11
Do Ministers sit on Moses Seat?	<ul> <li>Introductory Remarks</li> <li>The origin of the Seat of Moses</li> <li>What is the Chair of Moses?</li> <li>Moses Seat in the New Testament</li> <li>What commentaries reveal</li> <li>Elders and Pastors</li> <li>The Ultimate Seat of Moses</li> <li>Conclusions</li> <li>Appendix: The actions haughty thinking results in</li> <li>References</li> </ul>	2020	2020	Church of God	13
Do You Block the Talents of Others?	<ul> <li>Contents</li> <li>Introduction         <ul> <li>Conscious attempts to Cause Harm</li> <li>The other articles in this series</li> </ul> </li> <li>How Deception Works         <ul> <li>Deception by Lying and Cunning</li> </ul> </li> <li>Tricks that are used – Personal Examples         <ul> <li>Gaslighting</li> <li>Examples of Trickery</li> </ul> </li> <li>So what's the difference between abusive ministers and some members?</li> </ul>	2024	2024	Doctrine	39

Title	Section Headings	Year First Published	Latest Version	Topic	Approx. No. of Pages
	Standing up to Antagonists – Thoughts and Quotes     When some who seek Ordination accomplish their Goal     Conclusions     Appendix. Stop Sanguine Persecution in the Church     Appendix. Spiritual Sheepdogs     Appendix. Words of Wisdom     Appendix. True Grit!     References				J
Doctrines of the Sabbatarians since the First Century	<ul> <li>Contents</li> <li>Introductory Remarks</li> <li>Chart. Doctrines of the Sabbatarians since the First Century</li> <li>Concluding Remarks</li> <li>References and Additional Reading</li> <li>Endnotes</li> </ul>	2020	2021	Church History	16
Do 7 Tribes of Israel Parallel the 7 Churches of Revelation 2 & 3?	<ul> <li>Introduction</li> <li>First Division of the Land</li> <li>Principle of the tribe of Dan</li> <li>Comparing 7 tribes with the 7 churches</li> <li>Conclusions</li> <li>Bibliography</li> </ul>	2020	2020	Prophecy	10
Does God Micro-manage Christians?	• Notes	2012	2022	Bible Study	8
Doctrinal Heritage of the Church of God in the Nineteenth Century	<ul> <li>Introductory Remarks</li> <li>Background to the Christian Connexion</li> <li>The Origin of the Christian Connexion</li> <li>Growth of the Christian Connexion</li> <li>Summary of Influencers</li> <li>William Miller (1782-1849)</li> <li>Henry Grew (1781-1862)</li> <li>Dunbar Isidore Heath (1816-1888)</li> <li>Henry Dunn (1801-1878)</li> <li>George Stetson (1814-1879)</li> <li>George Storrs (1796-1879)</li> <li>Charles Taze Russell (1852-1916)</li> <li>Groups impacted by the Christian Connexion and Millerites</li> <li>Evangelical Adventists</li> <li>Advent Christian Church</li> <li>Life and Advent Union</li> <li>Church of God (Abrahamic Faith)</li> <li>John Thomas and the Christadelphians</li> <li>Russellites and early Jehovah Witnesses</li> <li>Seventh-day Adventists</li> <li>Church of God (seventh day)</li> <li>Christian Connection and the Sabbath</li> <li>Similarities of Titles of Periodicals and Doctrines with the Church of God</li> </ul>	2019	2021	Church of God	76

Title	Section Headings	Year First Published	Latest Version	Topic	Approx. No. of Pages
	<ul> <li>Titles of Periodicals</li> <li>Charles Taze Russell's Similarities to the Church of God</li> <li>The Christadelphian Similarities to the Church of God</li> <li>Historical Links and Similarities between Seventh-day Adventists and Church of God</li> <li>Conclusion</li> <li>Appendix. Chart of Church of God and Sabbatarian Connections to Influencers</li> <li>Appendix. Chart of Influencers on the Development of Church of God Doctrines in the Nineteenth Century</li> <li>Appendix. Church of God and Other Group Interrelationships</li> <li>Appendix: Review of Henry Dunn's The Kingdom of God; or, What is the Gospel?</li> <li>Appendix: Fair Chance Quotes</li> <li>Appendix: Charles Taze Russell and Born Again</li> <li>Appendix: The Birth of the Spirit by Gilbert Cranmer</li> <li>Appendix: Roots of the Born Again in the Resurrection Doctrine</li> <li>Appendix: A History of the Saturday Resurrection Doctrine Among Sabbath-Keepers</li> <li>Appendix: The Trinity in Seventh-day Adventist History</li> <li>Appendix. The 1888 Articles of Faith</li> </ul>	, usilificu	VCISIOII		UI Fages
Does the New Testament Extinguish the Need for Circumcision?	<ul> <li>Appendix. The Millennium and Kingdom of God on Earth</li> <li>References</li> <li>What the Old Testament Reveals</li> <li>New Testament Scriptures</li> </ul>	2000	2002	Law	9
	<ul> <li>Hygenic Benefits of Circumcision</li> <li>Should Circumcision be Practised Today?</li> <li>Appendix 1: List of Old Testament Scriptures on Circumcision</li> <li>Appendix 2: List of New Testament Scriptures on Circumcision</li> </ul>				
Do Sacrifices Provide Forgiveness?	<ul> <li>Introductory Comments</li> <li>Spiritual intent of Sacrifices</li> <li>The Meaning of Jeremiah 7:22-23</li> <li>Discussion</li> <li>Reasonings by Experts</li> <li>Concluding Remarks</li> <li>References</li> <li>Suggested Readings on the Significance of the Sacrificial System</li> <li>Appendix. Pertinent Scriptures</li> <li>Appendix. Sacrifice in Ancient Israel</li> <li>Appendix. "Sacrifice," Smith's Bible Dictionary</li> </ul>	2019	2021	Bible Study	27
Early Doctrines of the Eastern Churches	<ul> <li>Introductory Remarks</li> <li>The Sabbath in the Eastern Church</li> <li>Christology</li> <li>Born Again Doctrine and the Eastern Church</li> <li>Divinisation/Deification/Theosis in the Early Church</li> <li>Wednesday Crucifixion – Saturday Resurrection Doctrine</li> <li>Concluding Remarks</li> <li>Bibliography</li> </ul>	2005	2019	Church History	25

Title	Section Headings	Year First Published	Latest Version	Topic	Approx. No. of Pages
	Suggested Reading				
Europe, the King of the South & the Middle East (incorporated into <i>The Great German Nation</i> book)	<ul> <li>Introductory Comments</li> <li>European Invasion of the Middle East</li> <li>The Historical King of the South</li> <li>Comparison of Psalm 83 with Daniel 11</li> <li>Concluding Remarks</li> </ul>	2006	2015	Prophecy	12
Feast of the Nations	<ul> <li>Bibliography and Further Reading</li> <li>Bible Study Series Outlines: The Nations in the World Tomorrow</li> <li>Introductory Comments</li> <li>Jewish Traditions and Explanations</li> <li>Gathering in of the nations – their time to be offered salvation</li> <li>Why Rejoicing?</li> <li>Concluding Remarks</li> <li>References</li> <li>Appendix One: Scriptures on the Feast of Tabernacles</li> <li>Appendix Two: Why Should You Rejoice at the Feast?</li> <li>Appendix Three: But What If 'Everything Goes Wrong'?</li> </ul>	2016	2021	Prophecy	42
German Plans to Invade Britain and America in World Warts 1 and 2 (incorporated into <i>The</i> <i>Great German Nation</i> book)	<ul> <li>Appendix Four: Feast of Tabernacles and Last Great Day</li> <li>German plans against Britain and America go back a long time! The Plot to Bring Down the British Empire</li> <li>A German Attack On America? The invasion plans which have been hidden for a century</li> <li>A German Attack On America?</li> <li>William L. Shirer in The Rise and Fall of the Third Reich, p.782 notes</li> <li>Kaiser Wilhelm's Germany Had Plan to Take New York</li> <li>"The Zimmermann Telegram" The Independent</li> <li>"Germans planned U.S. invasion century ago" The Daily Times. 2003-01-12</li> <li>Telegram that brought US into Great War is found</li> </ul>	2003	2003	Prophecy	8
God the Father and Two Divine Beings in the New Testament	<ul> <li>Part I List of Scriptures on God the Father</li> <li>Part II Two Divine Beings, not Three</li> </ul>	2009	2009	Godhead	13
God's Glory and Man's Destiny	<ul> <li>Introduction: Darkness and Light</li> <li>Our God is like a blazing Sun!</li> <li>The Glory that shall be – the Incredible Human Potential</li> <li> But our God can emanate Fire that will Devour!</li> <li>Appendix: Early and Modern References to Divinisation</li> <li>Postscript</li> <li>Bibliography</li> </ul>	1998	2013	God's Plan	39
God's Law and Way of Life Before Moses	<ul> <li>Introductory Remarks</li> <li>God's Eternal and Consistent Way of Life</li> <li>Chart. God's Laws and Way of Life Before Mose4</li> <li>Ten Commandments</li> <li>Holy Days or proto-Holy Days</li> <li>Other Laws and Requirements</li> </ul>	2020	2021	Law	24

Title	Section Headings	Year First Published	Latest Version	Topic	Approx. No. of Pages
	<ul> <li>Concluding Remarks</li> <li>References and Additional Reading</li> </ul>				-
Graded Holiness and Sin	<ul> <li>Introductory Comments</li> <li>Graded Holiness</li> <li>Graded Sin</li> <li>Graded Rewards</li> <li>Graded Punishment</li> <li>Concluding Remarks</li> <li>Appendix. "Punishments", Smith's Bible Dictionary</li> <li>Appendix. How many sins called for the death penalty in the Old Testament? by Steve Shirley</li> <li>References</li> </ul>	2021	2021	Bible Study	17
Greenberry George Rupert. A significant Church of God leader!	<ul> <li>Uncle Ron and GG Rupert</li> <li>Letter from Uncle Ron</li> <li>The Mysterious Table of Nations</li> <li>A Warning to the Church</li> <li>Strange coincidences?</li> <li>Conclusion</li> </ul>	2018	2022	Church History	15
Greenberry G Rupert: Man of God	<ul> <li>A Remarkable Church of God Teacher &amp; Missionary</li> <li>SDA Sources on Rupert</li> <li>Church of God Sources</li> <li>Non-Sabbatarian Sources</li> <li>Concluding Remarks</li> <li>Appendix: Research by Richard C. Nickels</li> <li>Appendix: Literature by Rupert</li> <li>Appendix: Library Holdings</li> <li>Appendix: Information from Rootsweb</li> <li>References</li> <li>Related Reading</li> </ul>	2007	2019	Church History	55
Herbert W Armstrong and the Reform of Church Governance	<ul> <li>Associated Readings</li> <li>Introductory Remarks</li> <li>Historical Background</li> <li>Problems and Issues</li> <li>Authorised Changes</li> <li>Mr Armstrong's Statements</li> <li>Resistance to Change</li> <li>Doctrines, policies, guidelines and statements</li> <li>Concluding Remarks</li> <li>Appendix. Herbert W Armstrong's letter to the Letter Answering Department</li> <li>Appendix. Examples of old articles promoting Church Governance</li> <li>Appendix. Did God Create Human Nature?</li> <li>Appendix. Extracts from Mr McNair's Ministerial Conference Notes 1969-1973</li> <li>Appendix. Examples of Mr Armstrong's Approved Changes</li> </ul>	2023	2023	Church Administration	84

Title	Section Headings	Year First Published	Latest Version	Topic	Approx. No. of Pages
	<ul> <li>Appendix. Select Articles on Church Governance 1950s-60s</li> <li>Appendix. List of Church Governance related articles 1978-1981</li> <li>Appendix. Sabbath Observance as taught by Herbert W Armstrong</li> <li>Appendix. Brethren in Zaire permitted mild work on the Sabbath</li> <li>Appendix. Herbert W Armstrong and Clean &amp; Unclean Meats</li> <li>Appendix: Extracts from All About Water Baptism by Herbert W Armstrong</li> <li>Appendix. Third Tithe change</li> <li>Appendix. The 1974 Change on Make-up</li> <li>Appendix. Birthday Observance Change</li> <li>Appendix. Approved Doctrinal Taskforce</li> <li>References</li> </ul>				
Herbert W Armstrong's Early Beliefs and Doctrines	Suggested Reading (articles and studies) Introductory Remarks What was learned from the Church of God (Seventh Day) Strictness, Legalism and Unclean Meats Church Governance A Fair Chance of Salvation for all Mankind Born Again Teaching Pentecost Date Pyramidology The Godhead Concluding Remarks Appendix. Which is the One True Church of God? Appendix. The Great Pyramid Appendix. Extracts from All About Water Baptism by Herbert W Armstrong Bibliography	2023	2023	Church History	39
Herbert W Armstrong: Man of God (incorporating & updating of 4 papers)	Foreword     Roots of Our Beliefs, Names & Titles     Did HWA Read the Works of EW Bullinger?     Investigations into supposed links to the Latter-Day Saints (Mormons)     The Genealogy of HWA (1892-1986)     Final Conclusions     Chart     References	1997	2020	Church History	84
Herbert W Armstrong Papers Collection	• Chart	2018	2018	Church History	10
Herman L Hoeh: Salute to a WCG Pioneer	<ul> <li>Research Scholar</li> <li>Continued with the Worldwide Church of God</li> <li>Contacts with Hoeh</li> <li>Variety of Interests</li> <li>Appendix 1: Letter to Herman Hoeh</li> <li>Appendix 2: Latest Research</li> <li>Appendix 3: Information on H L Hoeh from WCG Publications</li> </ul>	2005	2019	Church History	43

Title	Section Headings	Year First Published	Latest Version	Topic	Approx. No. of Pages
	Appendix 4: Tributes to Dr H L Hoeh				
Historic Church of God Fundamentals of Belief	<ul> <li>Comments</li> <li>18 Restored Truths to the Church of God by Herbert W Armstrong (1983)</li> <li>Fundamentals of Belief, Radio Church of God (late 1940s)</li> <li>What the Church of God Believes, and Why (1949)</li> <li>Fundamentals of Belief, Radio Church of God (1938)</li> <li>Chief Tenants of Belief and Practice of the Church of God (Seventh Day) Salem, West Virginia (1936)</li> <li>Doctrinal Statements of the Church of God (7th Day) (1933)</li> <li>What the Church of God Believes, and Why (1917)</li> <li>Fundamental Doctrines of the Remnant of Israel group (early 1900s)</li> <li>Fundamental Doctrines of the Church of God (unattached) (early 1900s)</li> <li>Articles of Faith of the Church of God (1888)</li> <li>Articles of Faith of the Church of Christ (1863)</li> <li>Doctrines of the South Fork of Hughes River Seventh Day Baptists (1840s)</li> <li>Beliefs and Doctrines of the Seventh Day Baptists (1809)</li> <li>Articles of Faith of the Church of God, Piscataway (1705)</li> <li>Fundamental Doctrines of the Seventh-day Adventists (1872)</li> <li>Bibliography and Suggested Reading</li> </ul>	2014	2021	Church History	57
History of Educational Seminars	<ul> <li>Background</li> <li>1996</li> <li>1997</li> <li>1998</li> <li>1999</li> <li>2001</li> <li>2003</li> <li>2006</li> </ul>	2006	2019	Miscellaneous	29
History of the Advisory Council of Elders	Notes	2024	2024	Church of God	8
History of the Extended Arm Salute	<ul> <li>Introductory Remarks</li> <li>Ancient Egyptian and Assyrian Origins</li> <li>The Roman Salute</li> <li>Usage during the Holy Roman and Napoleonic Periods</li> <li>Conclusion</li> <li>References</li> </ul>	2021	2021	Prophecy	14
History of the Fair Chance Doctrine	<ul> <li>Introductory Remarks</li> <li>A Fair Chance – Not Universalism</li> <li>Key Proponents of the Fair Chance doctrine</li> <li>Dunbar Isidore Heath (1816-1888)</li> <li>Henry Dunn (1801-1878)</li> <li>George Stetson (1814-1879)</li> <li>George Storrs (1796-1879)</li> </ul>	2019	2021	Church History	35

Title	Section Headings	Year First Published	Latest Version	Topic	Approx. No. of Pages
	<ul> <li>Charles Taze Russell (1852-1916)</li> <li>Other Advocates of a Fair Chance</li> <li>Church of God Belief</li> <li>Chart: Doctrinal flow</li> <li>Conclusions</li> <li>Appendix. Extracts from Future Probation in Christian Belief</li> <li>Appendix. Review of Henry Dunn's The Kingdom of God; or, What is the Gospel?</li> <li>Appendix. Doctrinal Outlines - Eternal Judgment</li> <li>Partial Listing of old Worldwide Church of God articles on the subject</li> <li>Suggested Reading</li> <li>References</li> </ul>				
History of the Feast of Tabernacles in the Radio/Worldwide Church of God	<ul> <li>Introductory Comments</li> <li>Holy Day Observance Prior to Herbert W Armstrong</li> <li>Attendance Figures at the Feast of Tabernacles</li> <li>Looking back on early Feasts by John B. Heath</li> </ul>	2019	2021	Church of God	14
History of the Place of Safety Doctrine	<ul> <li>Introduction</li> <li>First Reference to a Place of Safety</li> <li>Concluding Remarks</li> <li>List of Worldwide Church of God articles on the Place of Safety</li> <li>References</li> </ul>	2019	2021	Church of God	7
History of the Plain Truth Magazine	<ul> <li>History of the Plain Truth Magazine</li> <li>The Messenger of Truth Explanation</li> <li>Addendum – HWA's WW2 predictions (Chapter 44)</li> </ul>	2019	2019	Church of God	6
History of the World Tomorrow Broadcast	<ul> <li>History of the World Tomorrow Broadcast</li> <li>Notes and Comments</li> <li>Sources</li> </ul>	2019	2019	Church of God	6
History of the Worldwide Church of God's Foreign Works	<ul> <li>Africa</li> <li>Asia</li> <li>Australasia</li> <li>Europe</li> <li>North America</li> <li>South and Central America</li> </ul>	2020	2020		2
History of Prophetic Charts and Tables	<ul> <li>Introductory Remarks</li> <li>Part I. Church of God &amp; Sabbatarian Charts</li> <li>Part II. Charts by Non-Sabbatarian Authors</li> <li>Part III. Appendices</li> <li>Select Church of God Literature</li> <li>References</li> </ul>	2020	2020		53
History of Worldwide Church of God Ministerial Conferences	• Chart	2020	2020	Church of God	19
History of Worldwide Church of God Publications	History of Worldwide Church of God Publications and Booklets	2019	2023	Church of God	5
Going Soft on Homosexuality	Introductory Comments	2005	2020	Prophecy	59

Title	Section Headings	Year First Published	Latest Version	Topic	Approx. No. of Pages
	<ul> <li>Surrendering to Political Correctness</li> <li>Christian Homosexuality?</li> <li>References</li> <li>Relevant New Testament Scriptures</li> <li>The Old Testament Attitude to Homosexuality by Gordon J Wenham</li> <li>Language and Society by Ian Heath</li> <li>What the Bible Really Says About Homosexuality by the Bethel Church of God</li> <li>Homosexuality and the Bible by Isaiah 58 Broadcasts &amp; Tracts</li> <li>Is Homosexuality Condemned by the Bible? by Richard N. Ostling</li> <li>Reply to Shmuley Boteach on Gay Marriage by Rabbi David Eidensohn</li> <li>The Bible and Homosexual Practice: An Overview of Some Issues by Robert A. J. Gagnon, Ph.D.</li> <li>2003, the Year of the Homosexual by Flip Benham</li> <li>Essay: How Normal is Deviance? By Charles Whitaker</li> </ul>				
How the Israel Identity Truth entered the Church of God	Introduction Gradual acceptance of the Israel Identity Truth by the Church of God Herbert W Armstrong and the Israel Identity Doctrine Extracts from What is the Third Angel's Message? Various editions of the US & Britain in Prophecy Continuing this doctrine Concluding Remarks References Appendix. Letter from Dugger to Armstrong February 1929 Appendix. Letter from Dugger to Armstrong July 1929 Appendix. A History and Comparison of the Various Editions of The United States and Britain in Prophecy	2019	2020	History	20
Is Matthew 25:31-46 a Spiritual or Literal Parable?	<ul> <li>Introductory Comments</li> <li>Charitable Works</li> <li>What Commentaries Reveal</li> <li>Similar Scriptures or Concepts</li> <li>Final Comments</li> </ul>	2024	2024	Doctrine	9
Is the Enslavement of the House of Israel Feasible in the 21 <sup>st</sup> Century?	<ul> <li>Introductory Comments</li> <li>Historical Precedents for Huge Population Shifts</li> <li>Relevant Scriptures</li> <li>The Coming National European Socialist Empire and its War upon the Anglo-Saxon Nations</li> <li>Cruel Tribulation Coming Upon the British and Americans</li> <li>Concluding Remarks</li> <li>Appendix: Related Readings</li> <li>Appendix: What Herbert W Armstrong Proclaimed</li> <li>Appendix: Historical Examples of Population Transfers</li> <li>Appendix: A Modern Example of Slavery</li> <li>Appendix: Disaster Types. Population movement and displaced people</li> <li>Bibliography &amp; Suggested Reading</li> </ul>	2006	2006	Prophecy	57

Title	Section Headings	Year First Published	Latest Version	Topic	Approx. No. of Pages
	Watchman Articles				
Isaiah 24 and Deuteronomy 28, 29, 30, 31, 32 Parallels	• Chart	2014	2014	Prophecy	3
Israel. The Apple of God's Eye	<ul> <li>Introductory Remarks</li> <li>The pupil of His Eye</li> <li>Why Israel?</li> <li>Israel – a special people to God</li> <li>In what way is Israel a special people to God?</li> <li>Replacement Theology</li> <li>Appendix. Israel's Future as a Nation</li> <li>Appendix. The importance of Israel throughout the Bible</li> <li>Concluding Remarks</li> <li>Suggested Reading</li> </ul>	2015	2019	Israel	35
Jealousy and Envy in Scripture	<ul> <li>Introductory Remarks</li> <li>What is Jealousy?</li> <li>What is Envy?</li> <li>Jealousy leads to Envy, Harassment and Ambition</li> <li>Concluding Remarks</li> <li>Appendix: Envy, Jealousy, or Covetousness: What Is the Difference?</li> <li>Appendix: Collection of Quotes on Jealousy and Envy</li> <li>Appendix: Beckham jealousy sunk England - PA Sport</li> <li>References</li> </ul>	2020	2020	Bible Study	21
Just what do you mean – 'Christ in you'?	<ul> <li>Introduction</li> <li>What the New Testament Reveals</li> <li>We must put on Christ – be in Him as He is in us!</li> <li>The outcome: we will be like Him in the resurrection!</li> <li>Bibliography</li> </ul>	2020	2020	Miscellaneous	10
Just what do you mean – 'Watch ye therefore'?	<ul> <li>Introductory Remarks</li> <li>What Herbert W Armstrong Taught</li> <li>Bible Helps</li> <li>Bible Versions</li> <li>Conclusions</li> <li>Appendix 1: Parallel Scriptures</li> <li>Appendix 2: Paul's Teachings Paralleling Christ's</li> <li>Appendix 3: Watchfulness</li> <li>References</li> <li>Index</li> </ul>	2007	2007	Prophecy	29
Just what do you mean – "Laodicean Church"?	<ul> <li>Laodiceans – People of God</li> <li>Where is the True Church?</li> <li>A Scattered Little Flock</li> <li>The Mysterious Synagogue of Satan</li> <li>Signs of the True Church</li> <li>The Temple Analogy</li> </ul>	1993	2020	Church of God	38

Title	Section Headings	Year First Published	Latest Version	Topic	Approx. No. of Pages
	<ul> <li>The ancient city of Laodicea</li> <li>Problems with Laodicea</li> <li>Laodicea's spiritual nightmare</li> <li>Christ's Love Letter to His Laodicean Church</li> <li>Who is the Daughter of Zion in Prophecy?</li> <li>The Sleepy Church</li> <li>Laodicea Must Repent or Perish</li> </ul>	T G S II S I S I S I S I S I S I S I S I	version.		011 4360
Just What do you mean "Ezekiel's Message"?	<ul> <li>How the idea came to Mr Armstrong</li> <li>Defining 'Ezekiel's Message'</li> <li>Final Thoughts: Back to the Future</li> <li>Typical "Ezekiel Message" articles</li> </ul>	1996	2019	Prophecy	20
Just What do you mean "Ezekiel's Message"? (parts 2 & 3)	Section Two: Ezekiel's Message and the Work (an issue that just will not go away)  Will the Churches of God get on with the Work?  Let's get 'Back on the Track' on this subject Section Three: Proclaiming the Ezekiel Message in the Local Church  Church elders: should they water-down the truth?  Watering-down the US & Britain in Prophecy  Basic Principles in Understanding the Ezekiel Message/  Captivity Doctrine  The extensive knowledge this truth brings to us  Advantages of knowing who Israel is today	1999	2001	Prophecy	20
Law of God Resources and Handbook of Quotes	<ul> <li>Associated Readings and Bible studies</li> <li>Introductory Remarks</li> <li>The Covenants         <ul> <li>Minor Commandments?</li> </ul> </li> <li>What does the Word "Law" Mean in the Bible?</li> <li>Non-Church of God advocates for the Law of God         <ul> <li>Miscellaneous Quotes on the Law</li> </ul> </li> <li>Sabbath</li> <li>Sermon on the Mount and the Law of God</li> <li>The Old New Commandment (1 John 2:7-11)</li> <li>The Law as Grace from God</li> <li>The Adaptability of the Law</li> <li>Acts 15:19-21 Explanation</li> </ul> <li>Matthew 5:17-20 Explanation</li> <li>Galatians 4         <ul> <li>Warning Against Misusing the Law of God</li> <li>Referring to Pagan not Biblical Observance</li> <li>The Temptation to Revert to the Sacrificial System to Save</li> <li>The Weak and Beggarly Elements were not God's Law</li> <li>The Risk of Returning to Heathenism</li> <li>Slavery to Paganism, not Jewish Legalism</li> </ul> </li> <li>Gal 3:23-26 - and the Commandments as paidagogos</li>	2023	2023	Law	159

Title	Section Headings	Year First Published	Latest Version	Topic	Approx. No. of Pages
	<ul> <li>Galatian 3:19 Meaning</li> <li>Colossians 2:16</li> <li>Ephesians 2:14-15 explained</li> <li>Law in Romans</li> <li>Is Christ the "end of the Law"?</li> <li>II Cor 3:6-8</li> <li>Appendix. Do the Words of Christ hold more weight than other portions of the Bible?</li> <li>Appendix. Did Christ Approve Profaning of the Sabbath?</li> <li>Appendix. Ancient Biblical Concepts and Modern Interpretations</li> <li>Appendix. Law of God in Graphics</li> <li>Suggested readings – Bible Law</li> <li>Suggested Reading – Bible Law Indexes</li> <li>Suggested Reading – The Old Testament in the New</li> <li>Suggested Reading – Select Church of God Literature</li> <li>References</li> </ul>				
List of Sabbatarian Groups in Australia	• List	2002	2002	Church of God	1
Lists and Charts of the Early Years of the Ministry of Herbert W Armstrong	<ul> <li>Comments</li> <li>Table: The Beginnings Until Ordination</li> <li>Table: From ordination until the separation of the Radio Church of God</li> <li>Chart: The Early Years of Herbert W Armstrong</li> <li>Chart: Radio/Worldwide Church of God's Origin</li> <li>Letter from Dugger to Armstrong February 1929</li> <li>Letter from Dugger to Armstrong February 1929 (original)</li> <li>Letter from Dugger to Armstrong July 1929</li> <li>Letter from Dugger to Armstrong July 1929 (original)</li> <li>List: Doctrines Mr Armstrong learned from the Church of God (Seventh Day)</li> <li>Ministerial Licence Certificate 1932 (2nd)</li> <li>Ministerial Licence Certificate 1933 (3rd)</li> <li>Credentials of Discipleship 1934</li> <li>Credentials of Discipleship (colour) 1934</li> <li>Bibliography</li> </ul>	2021	2021	Church of God	23
Matthew 16:19. Commentaries & Parallel Translations	<ul><li>Commentaries</li><li>Parallel Translations</li></ul>	2010	2010	Bible Study	13
Middle East in Prophecy and Daniel 11 Chart	<ul> <li>Opening Statement</li> <li>Daniel 11 Chart</li> <li>Appendix: The Middle East in Prophecy by Herber w Armstrong</li> <li>References</li> </ul>	2021	2021	Prophecy	34
Modern Identity of the Simeonites	<ul> <li>Introductory Remarks</li> <li>Simeon, a Tribe within Judah         <ul> <li>Simeon's Descendants</li> <li>A Tribe within Judah</li> </ul> </li> <li>Simeonite Characteristics         <ul> <li>A Personal Encounter</li> </ul> </li> </ul>	2022	2022	Origin of Nations	22

Title	Section Headings	Year First Published	Latest Version	Topic	Approx. No. of Pages
	<ul> <li>Tribal Nature</li> <li>Where are the Simeonites Located Today?         <ul> <li>Similar Tribal Names in History</li> <li>Locations in the British Isles</li> </ul> </li> <li>Conclusions</li> <li>Appendix. Brythonic and Gaelic</li> <li>Bibliography</li> </ul>				, and the second
Monitoring Changes in the WCG – a chronological history	<ul> <li>Introduction</li> <li>Abbreviations</li> <li>1986</li> <li>1987</li> <li>1988</li> <li>1989</li> <li>1990</li> <li>1991</li> <li>1992</li> <li>1993</li> </ul>	1986-95	2002	Church of God	9
Monotheistic Binitarianism/ Ditheism and the Exalted Christ in Church of God Doctrine	Some Notes and Comments	2014	2022	Church of God	94
Napoleon. A Roman Emperor	<ul> <li>Introduction</li> <li>Napoleon's Legacy to the Holy Roman Empire</li> <li>Two Halves of Napoleon's Empire: a Type</li> <li>Roman Regalia Galore</li> <li>Napoleon and the Jews</li> <li>Comparing Napoleon and Hitler</li> <li>Final Analysis</li> <li>Appendix. Napoleon's Dreams for an Empire in the Americas</li> <li>Appendix. Hitler's Pilgrimage to Napoleon's Sarcophagus</li> <li>Appendix. How Catholics brought Napoleon to his knees</li> <li>References</li> </ul>	2021	2021	Prophecy	41
Mysterious Origin of the King of the North vs King of the South Conflict	Introduction     Ancient Rivalries	2023	2023	Prophecy	32

Title	Section Headings	Year First Published	Latest Version	Topic	Approx. No. of Pages
	<ul> <li>Assur identified in history</li> <li>Earliest Mesopotamia</li> <li>Who was Nimrod in history?</li> <li>Clash of Titans: Assur vs Nimrod</li> <li>Nimrod's Empire Scatters</li> <li>Two Branches of Cush</li> <li>Future King of the North invasion of North &amp; Middle East</li> <li>The Historical King of the South</li> <li>Comparison of Psalm 83 with Daniel 11</li> <li>Concluding Remarks</li> <li>References</li> </ul>				
Notes on Azazel's Culpability and Separation from God	<ul> <li>Introductory Thoughts</li> <li>Satan's fall and separation from God</li> <li>Graded Separation from God</li> <li>The Culpability of the Azazel Goat</li> <li>Typology in Revelation proves Azazel is Satan</li> <li>Final Remarks</li> <li>Bibliography</li> </ul>	2016	2021	Doctrine	13
Notes on the History of Passover Observance Amongst Sabbatarians since the 18 <sup>th</sup> Century	<ul> <li>Introductory Remarks</li> <li>Passover and Lord's Supper in Statements of Belief</li> <li>Old Church of God (Seventh Day) Booklets and Articles</li> <li>Extracts from Passover and Holy Day Observances since the First Century</li> <li>Concluding Remarks</li> <li>Appendix. Extracts from 2 books by Richard Nickels</li> <li>Appendix. Herbert W Armstrong and the term 'the Lord's Supper'</li> <li>References and Suggested Reads</li> </ul>	2024	2024	Church of God	25
Notes on the independent Sabbatarian Groups (non-SDB) c1802-c1850	<ul> <li>A True History of the True Church by H L Hoeh</li> <li>Old Bible Correspondence Course (Lesson 53)</li> <li>J Kiesz Some Church of God History (7<sup>th</sup> Day)</li> <li>Subject: Groups leaving Seventh Day Baptists</li> <li>A History of the Sabbath and Sunday by John Kiesz</li> <li>God's Church Through The Ages by John H. Ogwyn</li> <li>The Incredible History of God's True Church by Ivor C. Fletcher (Chapter Thirteen – The New World)</li> <li>Sabbatarian History - Our Own Thanksgiving Story by Doug Ward</li> <li>A True History of the True Religion by Dugger and Dodd Chapter 22 – Eighteen Hundred to Present Date A.D</li> <li>HL Hoeh, sermon 27 January 1990</li> <li>Seventh Day Baptists in America Prior to 1802 by Rev. L. A. Platts</li> <li>Catholic Encyclopedia</li> <li>South American Groups</li> <li>Suggested Further Reading</li> </ul>	2003	2021	Church of God	34

Title	Section Headings	Year First Published	Latest Version	Topic	Approx. No. of Pages
Notes on the Pre-Adamic Flood & Resources Supporting the Gap Theory	<ul> <li>Introductory Comments</li> <li>Recommended Resources</li> <li>The Pre-Adamic Flood</li> <li>Pointing toward 4,000BC</li> <li>Concluding Comments</li> <li>Bibliography and Suggested Reading</li> <li>Appendix One: 'Did God Create a Devil?' by HWA</li> <li>Appendix Two: 'Armstrong Gap Theory'</li> <li>Appendix Three: 'Inner Earth may hold more waters than the seas</li> </ul>	2006	2019	Doctrine	32
Notes on the Third Resurrection Doctrine in the Church of God	<ul> <li>Introduction</li> <li>A Resurrection to Condemnation</li> <li>Three Resurrections in History and Typology</li> <li>Old WCG Articles on the Subject</li> </ul>	2018	2019	Doctrine	6
Old Testament Laws and Spiritual Requirements repeated in the New Testament	<ul> <li>Introductory Remarks</li> <li>Chart. Old Testament Laws repeated in the New Testament         <ul> <li>Ten Commandments</li> <li>Holy Days</li> <li>Other Laws and Requirements</li> </ul> </li> <li>Concluding Remarks</li> <li>References and Additional Reading</li> </ul>	2021	2021	Law	11
Origin of the Albanians	<ul> <li>Introduction</li> <li>Descendants of Lud\</li> <li>The Ghegs and Arvanites</li> <li>Conclusions</li> <li>Appendix. Albanian Language – Traces of Elamite</li> <li>References</li> </ul>	1990	2024	Origin of Nations	24
Origin of the Australian Aborigines	<ul> <li>List of Illustrations</li> <li>Associated Recommended Readings and Studies</li> <li>Introduction         <ul> <li>Methodology</li> <li>A Note on terminology</li> </ul> </li> <li>Chapter One. Biblical Origins         <ul> <li>Cush, son of Ham</li> <li>Two Branches of Cush</li> <li>Where Did Seba Migrate To</li> <li>Black Peoples in the Pacific Region</li> <li>Pygmy Peoples in the South-East Asian Isles</li> </ul> </li> <li>Chapter Two. Migrations from Asia into Australia         <ul> <li>Who was Nimrod?</li> <li>Nimrod's Empire Scatters</li> <li>The Land and Peoples of the Colchis</li> <li>The Move Eastward</li> <li>Tibet and the Australoids</li> </ul> </li> <li>Chapter Three. The Australian Aboriginals</li> </ul>	1990	2023	Origin of Nations	96

Title	Section Headings	Year First Published	Latest Version	Topic	Approx. No. of Pages
	<ul> <li>Aboriginals and the Indian Veddah</li> <li>Creation Stories</li> <li>Telling Aboriginal Culture and Practices</li> <li>The Dingo</li> <li>An Egyptian Connection?</li> <li>August Miles, Commissioner of Police, revealing article (1854)</li> <li>Other Practices: Coincidence?</li> <li>The Physiognomy of the Australoids</li> <li>The Scattered Australoids</li> <li>Australoid Presence in Oman and Yemen</li> <li>Settlement in Australia</li> <li>Concluding Remarks</li> <li>Appendix. Map of the Aboriginal Tribes</li> <li>Appendix. Egyptians &amp; Africans in Ancient Australia?</li> <li>References</li> </ul>				
Outline of Strategy for Church of God Co- operation	<ul> <li>Introduction</li> <li>Strategy Outline</li> <li>Strategy in Table Format</li> <li>Concluding Remarks</li> <li>Schematic of Types of Interest</li> </ul>	1995	2023	Church of God	4
Parallels between each Church Era and the Temple	<ul> <li>Introductory Remarks</li> <li>Positive Speculation</li> <li>Ephesus</li> <li>Smyrna</li> <li>Pergamos</li> <li>Thyatira</li> <li>Sardis</li> <li>Philadelphia</li> <li>Laodicea</li> <li>Concluding Remarks</li> <li>Bibliography</li> </ul>	2021	2021	Typology	11
Passover and Holy Day Observances since the First Century	<ul> <li>Introductory Remarks</li> <li>Chart</li> <li>Concluding Remarks</li> <li>References and Additional Reading</li> <li>Endnotes</li> </ul>	2018	2021	Church of God	29
Pax Germanica & US of Europe OR a New World Order/Babylon Theory – which is the correct doctrine? (incorporated into <i>The Great German Nation</i> book)	<ul> <li>A soon-coming National European Socialist Empire</li> <li>The Vatican stands up against a New Age Religion and Various Rival New World Orders</li> <li>The Clash of Civilizations - not the merging of the world into one</li> <li>The Holy Roman Empire - Outline of History</li> <li>A German-led Europe - a revived Holy Roman Empire - NOT a New World Order</li> <li>The Symbols of the Future Holy Roman Empire</li> <li>References</li> </ul>	1998	2001	Prophecy	22

Title	Section Headings	Year First Published	Latest Version	Topic	Approx. No. of Pages
	<ul> <li>Appendix 1: Emperors of the Holy Roman Empire</li> <li>Appendix 2: The Holy Roman Empire by Raymond H Schmandt</li> <li>Appendix 3: The Nobility of the Holy Roman Empire by Guy Stair Sainty</li> <li>Appendix 4: The Holy Roman Empire Association</li> </ul>				311365
Pioneers of the Worldwide Church of God	Appendix 4: The Holy Roman Empire Association  HWA lists the first ministers  List of the first ministers — year ordained  Radio Church of God congregations by 1958  Reports and Information on the Pioneers  Various Senior Men  Fifty Years Ago  Herman L Hoeh, Raymond McNair, Kenneth Herrmann  Herman L Hoeh, Roderick C Meredith  Kenneth C Herrmann, Raymond McNair  Roderick C Meredith  Basil Wolverton  Dwight Armstrong  Dwight Armstrong's Work  Buck Hammer  Tribute: Buck Hammer  Gerald Waterhouse  The Journal, Sept 2002  Herman Hoeh, Norman Smith, Dean Blackwell  Herman Hoeh, Norman Smith, Dean Blackwell  Herman Hoeh, Norman Smith, Dean Blackwell  Garner Ted Armstrong  Frnest Martin  Benjamin Rea  Lynn Torrance  Don Billingsley  Dean Wilson  Harold Jackson  Art (Arthur) Gilmore  Brief biography  Kenneth Herrmann  By Robert Macdonald, Lebanon, Mo. 65536, April 7, 2006  Richard C Nickels  Raymond F McNair  Other Senior Men and Women  Appendix: Further information on Basil Wolverton	2004	2016	Church of God	92
Ruling Classes in Conflict	The Forgotten Monarchy of Scotland – claims to be descendants of Judah!	2000	2000	Miscellaneous	6

Title	Section Headings	Year First Published	Latest Version	Topic	Approx. No. of Pages
	<ul> <li>Factions Galore</li> <li>The Lord's Throne</li> <li>Truth and error mixed together</li> <li>References</li> </ul>				·
Sabbatarian Groups – A Scattered and Little Flock	<ul> <li>The Historical Links Between Adventists and Churches of God</li> <li>The Worldwide Church of God</li> <li>Organisation and Cooperation</li> <li>List of groups in Australia</li> <li>Sabbatarian periodicals in Australia</li> <li>Suggested Reading</li> </ul>	1996	1998	Church of God	7
Second Exodus & The Last Trump	<ul> <li>Variety of Meanings</li> <li>Stages in the Second Exodus and Israel's Restoration</li> <li>Relevant Scriptures:         <ul> <li>Captivity in Foreign Lands</li> <li>Millions to be Delivered!</li> <li>Repentance and the New Covenant</li> </ul> </li> <li>Isaiah 40 – A Prophecy about the Second Exodus</li> </ul>	2010	2020	Bible Study	7
Sequence of End-Time Events Chart	Chart	2009	2013	Prophecy	7
Seven Restorations of the Work of the Church of God	<ul> <li>Prologue</li> <li>Introductory Remarks</li> <li>The Candlestick Symbolism in the Old and New Testaments</li> <li>Seven Restorations of the Work</li> <li>A Modern Example of Restoration</li> <li>The Increase in Biblical Knowledge (Dan 12:4)</li> <li>The Doors opened to Philadelphia (Rev 3:8)</li> <li>The 6<sup>th</sup> Era Proclaims a Warning to the House of Israel</li> <li>A Seventh Restoration Now Forming</li> <li>The Future of Laodicea - who is the Daughter of Zion in Prophecy?</li> <li>Concluding Remarks</li> <li>Appendix 1: Extract from Mystery of the Ages by Herbert W Armstrong, Chapter 6 – The Mystery of the Church</li> <li>Appendix 2: Chart - Possible Relationships to Church Eras</li> <li>Appendix 3: Revelation 2 &amp; 3</li> <li>Appendix 4: Some examples of works by Protestants and others who are rediscovering Bible Law and Hebraic Truth</li> <li>References</li> <li>Suggested Reading</li> </ul>	2003	2019	Church of God	54
Should we 'move on' from the old doctrines which came into the WCG? Or should we have continuity?	<ul> <li>Should we preach popular concepts of Christian living or Biblical concepts of Christian living?</li> <li>Fruitless 'pipsqueaks'</li> <li>Back to the Future!</li> <li>Recapturing Social Values after 13 Years of Liberalism and Watering-Down</li> </ul>	1997	2006	Church of God	11

Title	Section Headings	Year First Published	Latest Version	Topic	Approx. No. of Pages
Significant Remnant of Israel Quotes	<ul> <li>Other articles in this series</li> <li>Introductory Remarks</li> <li>Significant Quotes</li> <li>G.G. Rupert – In Memoriam</li> <li>G. G. Rupert and his meetings in Pasadena</li> <li>The Feast Days</li> <li>Obituary – Mrs Nellie Rupert</li> </ul>	2018	2018	Church of God	33
Spiritual Bastards in Scripture	<ul> <li>Introductory Remarks</li> <li>Bible Helps</li> <li>Comment</li> <li>Relevant Scriptures</li> <li>How does this impact upon a believer?</li> <li>Appendix: Christians and Sin</li> </ul>	2006	2006	Bible Study	6
Spiritual Whoredom in both Old and New Testaments	<ul> <li>Introduction</li> <li>Ancient Israel's Unfaithfulness</li> <li>Spiritual Whoredom</li> <li>The Spirit of Jezebel</li> <li>New Testament Revelations</li> <li>Concluding Remarks</li> <li>Appendix: "Prostitute, Prostitution". Dictionary of Biblical Imagery</li> <li>Appendix. Explanations from Bible Helps</li> <li>Appendix: Scriptures on Whoredom</li> <li>Bibliography</li> </ul>	2020	2020	Church of God	27
Status and Role of Nations in the World Tomorrow	<ul> <li>Introductory Comments</li> <li>Assyria</li> <li>Cush (Ethiopia)</li> <li>Canaan</li> <li>Edom (Esau)</li> <li>Gog, Magog, Meschech, Tubal etc</li> <li>Ishmael</li> <li>Mizraim (Egypt)</li> <li>Sheba, Seba and the Sabeans</li> <li>Tarshish, Javan, Lud</li> <li>Observations and Comments</li> <li>Appendix One. Explanation of Certain National Prophecies</li> <li>Appendix Two. List of Tribulation and Day of the Lord Prophecies Concerning the Nations</li> <li>Bibliography and Suggested Reading</li> </ul>	2015	2019	Bible Study	26
Steps in the Resurrection Process	<ul> <li>Fall asleep/die</li> <li>Awaken to Eternal Life</li> <li>Graves will open and you will live again!</li> <li>Resurrection glory</li> <li>Angels appear</li> <li>Ascend into the clouds</li> </ul>	2010	2020	Bible Study	10

Title	Section Headings	Year First Published	Latest Version	Topic	Approx. No. of Pages
	<ul> <li>Singing with joy!</li> <li>Marriage feast</li> <li>Rewarded</li> <li>Descend to the earth to reign with Christ</li> </ul>				
Structure of the Five Books of Psalms	<ul> <li>Foreword</li> <li>How to use this chart as a study guide</li> </ul>	2013	2013	Bible Study	10
Study Notes on Melchizedek	<ul> <li>Introduction</li> <li>The Origin of Melchizedek</li> <li>Representative of God</li> <li>David as a Priest-King</li> <li>Concluding Remarks: A Royal Priesthood</li> <li>References and Suggested Reading</li> <li>Appendix. Biblical Illustrator: Genesis 14:18-20</li> </ul>	2018	2022	Bible Study	32
Suggestions for Bible Study Topics	<ul> <li>Introductory Remarks</li> <li>List of Topics</li> <li>Appendix 1: "Talk About the Bible when you visit one another!" by HL Hoeh</li> <li>Appendix 2: "Teacher, Teacher" by Robert Berendt</li> <li>Appendix 3: "The Knowledge of God and Jesus Christ" by John Ross Schroeder</li> </ul>	2006	2006	Bible Study	9
Synagogue and Church: Comparative Structures	<ul> <li>Introduction and Background</li> <li>The Purpose of Church Governance         <ul> <li>Love the Foundation of Governance</li> <li>Form, Shape or Nature</li> </ul> </li> <li>From Synagogue to Church         <ul> <li>Historical Background</li> <li>Synagogue Origins</li> <li>Levites and Elders</li> <li>The Synagogue's Organisational Form</li> <li>Liturgy or Sabbath Service Format</li> <li>The Assembly</li> <li>The Senior or Chief Elder</li> <li>The Community Chief</li> <li>Elders</li> <li>The Teacher</li> <li>The Assistant or Deacon</li> <li>The Commissioner</li> <li>The Interpreter of foreign languages (tongues)</li> <li>Other Offices and Functions</li> <li>The Notables</li> <li>The Priest</li> <li>The Reader</li> </ul> </li> <li>Female offices?</li> <li>Apostles and Prophets</li> <li>Synagogue Courts</li> </ul>	1996	2021	Church of God	72

Title	Section Headings	Year First Published	Latest Version	Topic	Approx. No. of Pages
	<ul> <li>Students of the Torah</li> <li>Observations</li> <li>What does the New Testament Reveal?</li> <li>Does the New Testament radically alter the Old Testament?</li> <li>The Words of Christ</li> <li>Synagogue and Church</li> <li>Apostle</li> <li>The Prophet</li> <li>The Community Chief (pastor)</li> <li>The Elders</li> <li>Teachers</li> <li>The Servant or Deacon</li> <li>Interpreters of Foreign Languages (tongues)</li> <li>Women elders?</li> <li>New Testament Church Councils and Courts</li> <li>Priests and Levites in the Church?</li> <li>Concluding Remarks</li> <li>Appendix: Chart comparing offices in the Synagogue with those in the Early Church</li> <li>Appendix: Chart Cross-referencing Select Scriptures with Matthew 18</li> <li>Appendix: Study the Highest Form of Worship</li> <li>Appendix: Role of the Priests and Levites</li> <li>Bibliography</li> </ul>				
The 'Lord of Hosts' and the 'Elemental Spirits of the Universe'	<ul> <li>Introductory Remarks</li> <li>Paul's 'Elemental Spirits'</li> <li>Historical Information – the four elements and 'the god of this world'</li> <li>Mysterious Bull Symbols – 'power of the air'</li> <li>The 'Lord of Hosts' and the 'Host of Heaven'</li> <li>Christian Destiny</li> <li>Speculative angelic order chart</li> <li>Concluding Remarks</li> <li>Appendix: The Nature of God and Christ</li> <li>References</li> </ul>	2006	2018	Bible Study	55
The Apostasy of the First Century and its End- Time Parallels	<ul> <li>Introduction</li> <li>Just what is an apostasy?</li> <li>Why are there apostasies?</li> <li>Old Testament apostasies</li> <li>New Testament Scriptures on apostasy</li> <li>The Babylonian Conspiracy of the First Century</li> <li>The End-Time Apostasy</li> <li>Foretold in the Old Testament</li> <li>How to Hold on and Avoid Apostasies</li> <li>Concluding Remarks</li> <li>Bibliography</li> </ul>	2020	2020	Church of God	28

Title	Section Headings	Year First	Latest	Topic	Approx. No.
Title The Bible and Genetics	<ul> <li>○ List of Figures</li> <li>○ Bible study articles in this series</li> <li>○ Suggested reading</li> <li>Introduction</li> <li>Explaining Genetics, DNA and Y chromosome</li> <li>○ Definitions and Terms Used</li> <li>○ A World of Human Diversity and Complexity</li> <li>○ Is this racism?</li> <li>The Bible, Race and Nations</li> <li>○ How Y-Chromosome research might help</li> <li>○ To the Third and Fourth Generations</li> <li>○ Can Memories be passed down the Generations?</li> <li>○ Collective National Memory?</li> <li>What about British-Israelism?</li> <li>○ The 'Lost' Tribes of Israel and research</li> <li>○ Interesting Postings</li> <li>Conclusions</li> <li>○ Human Racial Types do exist</li> <li>○ Can we harmonise Genesis with Science?</li> <li>Appendix. The First Humans Out Of Africa Weren't Quite Who We Thought</li> <li>Appendix. Y chromosomes and mitochondrial DNA — A new frontier of genetic ancestry</li> <li>○ The Origin of Modern Humans</li> <li>○ Mitochondrial DNA (mtDNA)</li> <li>○ Y Chromosomes (Y-DNA)</li> <li>○ The Difference Between Ancestry and Race</li> <li>○ Deep Ancestry Analysis with Nebula Genomics</li> </ul>	Year First Published 2024	Latest Version 2024	Topic Origin of Nations	Approx. No. of Pages 80
The Born Again Teaching in the Light of History and Biblical Salvation Principles	<ul> <li>Appendix. Clinical Psychology vs Biology</li> <li>Appendix. Extract from Patrilineal Clans of the East and West: R1a and R1b</li> <li>Appendix. Extract from Pedigrees for all Humanity</li> <li>Appendix. A Statement from the British-Israel World Federation</li> <li>Appendix. Comments by Yair Davidiy</li> <li>Postscript</li> <li>Bibliography</li> <li>Introductory Remarks</li> <li>History of the Born Again Doctrine:</li> </ul>	1995	2022	God's Plan	85
	<ul> <li>Early church history</li> <li>The remnant Church of God in the Nineteenth and Twentieth centuries</li> <li>The Russellites (early Watchtower or Jehovah's Witnesses)</li> <li>Herbert W Armstrong - the sifter</li> <li>Biblical Salvation Principles:         <ul> <li>Background</li> <li>Calling into Glory</li> <li>Salvation/Grace/Blood of Christ</li> <li>Conversion/Reconciliation/Sanctification/Justification</li> </ul> </li> </ul>				

Title	Section Headings	Year First Published	Latest Version	Topic	Approx. No. of Pages
	<ul> <li>Redemption</li> <li>Put on Christ/the New Man/ New Creation</li> <li>Washing of Baptism by the spirit, water and blood</li> <li>Resurrection/Renewal/Re-creation/Glorification</li> <li>Kingdom of God membership</li> <li>Born Again</li> <li>Chart: the process of salvation: from baptism to resurrection</li> <li>Understanding the Background to John 3:         <ul> <li>What did Christ actually mean?</li> <li>Born Again or Born From Above? What Protestants Admit</li> <li>Meaning of Born of the Water</li> <li>What the Babylonian Mysteries taught - strange parallel</li> </ul> </li> <li>From Spiritual Resurrection to Bodily Birth:         <ul> <li>The Spiritual Resurrection</li> <li>John 3 and ICor 15 Parallels</li> <li>Was Christ Born Again?</li> </ul> </li> <li>Concluding Remarks</li> <li>Glossary</li> <li>Recommended Reading</li> <li>Bibliography</li> </ul>				j
The British Sense of Mission as a Ruling People	<ul> <li>Bibliography</li> <li>Introductory Remarks</li> <li>PART ONE: THE BRITISH EMPIRE AS TYPOLOGY</li> <li>Case Study: The British as a Ruling People in India         <ul> <li>The Rise of the New Raj</li> <li>British Imperial Attitudes</li> </ul> </li> <li>Why did God call Israel to great blessings?         <ul> <li>Israel and the Kingdom of God</li> <li>Israel to become a great colonizing people again under the Messiah</li> <li>Israel's coming Global rule</li> <li>The Church's relationship with Israel</li> </ul> </li> <li>PART TWO: APPENDICES</li> <li>Appendix One: Achievements of Empire</li> <li>Appendix Two: The right way to run an Empire</li> <li>Appendix Four: Yes, mistakes were made, but we must never stop being proud of the Empire</li> <li>Appendix Five: Confessions of Faith by Cecil Rhodes</li> <li>Appendix Six: Advocates of British-Israelism</li> <li>Suggested Websites</li> <li>Suggested Reading</li> <li>Bibliography</li> </ul>	2013	2021	Research Paper	71
The Central Europeans and Japanese (incorporated into <i>In Search of the Origin of Nations</i> )	The Descendants of Dedan  The Central French  Human Biology of the French  The Descendants of Tarshish	1983	1992	Origin of Nations	18

Title	Section Headings	Year First Published	Latest Version	Topic	Approx. No. of Pages
	<ul> <li>The Western Tarshish</li> <li>The Eastern Tarshish</li> <li>The Spaniards of Asia</li> <li>The Hebrews and the Land of the Rising Sun!</li> <li>Japan's Future</li> <li>Bibliography</li> </ul>				·
The 'Daughter of Zion' and 'My People' in Prophecy	Introductory Remarks     The Daughter of Babylon     Variety of terms for Zion     Jeremiah's Prophecy     Other Old Testament Prophecies Relating to Zion     Appendix One: List of Scriptures     Appendix Two: 'Zion' - From Wikipedia, the free encyclopedia     References	1980	2018	Prophecy	36
The End-Time Warning Ministry	<ul> <li>Introductory Comments</li> <li>The need for a Warning Ministry in the Last Days</li> <li>A Warning to the Anglo-Saxon-Keltic Powers</li> <li>Concluding Remarks</li> </ul>	2020	2020	Prophecy	11
The Final Year of Herbert W Armstrong	<ul> <li>Introductory Remarks</li> <li>The Final Year in Table Form</li> <li>Additional Information and Proofs</li> <li>References</li> </ul>	2022	2022	Church History	24
The Fulfillments of Genesis 49	<ul> <li>Introductory Comments</li> <li>Prophecy for the Latter Days</li> <li>Concluding Remarks</li> <li>Table – Genesis 49 Expounded</li> <li>Appendix 1: Symbols of the Tribes of Israel</li> <li>Appendix 2: Division of the Promised Land to the Tribes of Israel (Joshua 12-14)</li> <li>Appendix 3: Millennial Allotment to the Tribes of Israel (Ezekiel 48)</li> <li>Appendix 4: Jacob's Family and Wives</li> <li>Appendix 5: Genesis 49. The Purpose of Prophecy (Genesis 49:1-28)</li> <li>References</li> </ul>	2017	2019	Bible Study	36
The Herbert W Armstrong and Radio Church of God Historical Trail and Photo Album	<ul> <li>Acknowledgements</li> <li>Associated Readings</li> <li>Direct Website Links</li> <li>Introduction</li> <li>Visit to the Historical Sites 2011</li> <li>Visit to the Historical Sites &amp; Churches of God Dec 2017 – Jan 2018</li> <li>Herbert W Armstrong and Radio Church of God Historical Trail Chart</li> <li>Appendix. Trail Maps</li> <li>Appendix. Grave Sites of the Pioneers &amp; Wives</li> <li>References and Sources</li> </ul>	2018	2018	Church History	39
The Identity of the German People in Church of God Doctrine	<ul><li>Introduction</li><li>Origin of the Doctrine</li></ul>	2023	2023	Church History	27

Title	Section Headings	Year First Published	Latest Version	Topic	Approx. No. of Pages
	<ul> <li>Acceptance of German Identity in the Radio/Worldwide Church of God</li> <li>Continuing this doctrine</li> <li>Concluding Remarks</li> <li>Appendix: List of Important Biblical References to the Assyrians</li> <li>Appendix: Assyria in Prophecy. Scriptures pertaining to Assyria in the Last Days</li> <li>References</li> </ul>				
The Invisible Rulers over the Nations	<ul> <li>Abstract</li> <li>Background</li> <li>Gentile nations offered salvation!</li> <li>The philosophy of nationhood</li> <li>God's plan for the gentiles</li> <li>Mysterious bull symbols – 'power of the air'</li> <li>Ancient bull gods</li> <li>Comments by Herbert Armstrong</li> <li>The 'Lord of hosts' and the 'Host of heaven'</li> <li>Just what are the 'hosts' of scripture?</li> <li>The Assemblies of God</li> <li>The Court of Daniel 4</li> <li>Concluding remarks</li> <li>References</li> <li>Appendix: A Defense of Ethno-nationalism</li> </ul>	2016	20121	Nations	55
The Judging of the Nations	<ul> <li>Introductory Remarks</li> <li>Relevant Scriptures</li> <li>Upon His return, Christ smashes the nations</li> <li>Valley of Decision</li> <li>Israel rescued, cleansed, united, restored and given world leadership</li> <li>Christ ruling Israel and the world</li> <li>Christ rules out of Zion</li> <li>The Rebellion of Ezek 38 &amp; 39</li> <li>Example of Egypt</li> <li>Rebellions continue through the millennium</li> <li>Repentant nations side with the Messiah and offer Him gifts</li> <li>Nations repentant – the saints rule</li> <li>Rebellion again at the end of the millennium!</li> <li>Concluding Remarks</li> <li>Further Reading</li> </ul>	2011	2019	Nations	40
The Lake of Fire in History and Prophecy	<ul> <li>Abstract</li> <li>Introductory Comments</li> <li>Historical Information</li> <li>The Millennial Lake of Fire and Volcanic Activity</li> <li>Who will be cast into the fire?</li> <li>Concluding Remarks</li> <li>Appendix One. The Second Death. Why Bother?</li> <li>Appendix Two. Baker's Evangelical Dictionary of Biblical Theology</li> </ul>	2018	2021	Bible Study	29

Title	Section Headings	Year First Published	Latest Version	Topic	Approx. No. of Pages
	<ul> <li>Appendix Three. Shedding Light on the Outer Darkness: A Fresh Look at The Language of Hell</li> <li>References &amp; Further Reading</li> </ul>				
The Last Day of John 7 – The 7 <sup>th</sup> or 8 <sup>th</sup> Day of the Feast?	<ul> <li>Introductory Comments</li> <li>Calendar Issue</li> <li>Interpretation and traditions surrounding the 7<sup>th</sup> and 8<sup>th</sup> days</li> </ul>	2005	2015	Bible Study	39
The Law of Christ and the Mind of Christ	<ul> <li>Introductory Remarks and Relevant Scriptures</li> <li>Discussion</li> <li>The Mind of Christ</li> <li>Concluding Remarks</li> <li>Appendix. The Old New Commandment by bible.org</li> </ul>	2023	2023	Godhead	16
The Meaning of Ecclesiastes 5:1	• Notes	2012	2012	Bible Study	3
The Millennial Reign of the Messiah	<ul> <li>Introductory Remarks</li> <li>The Age to Come</li> <li>A Golden Age is Coming</li> <li>Chart Summarising the Chief Components of the Millennium</li> <li>Appendix One: God's Governmental Structure in the World Tomorrow (speculative)</li> <li>Appendix Two: Is the Temple of Ezekiel 40-48 Millennial or Pre-Millennial?</li> <li>Appendix Three: Will the Sacrificial System be restored?</li> <li>Appendix Four: Extracts from Commentaries</li> <li>Appendix Five: Old Worldwide Church of God articles on the Millennium</li> <li>References</li> </ul>	2017	2021	Bible Study	52
The Modern Descendants of Ishmael	<ul> <li>Bible study articles in this series</li> <li>Suggested Reading</li> <li>Introduction</li> <li>Origin of the Doctrine</li> <li>The Descendants of Ishmael</li> <li>Migration on Ishmael's Descendants         <ul> <li>The Twelve Sons of Ishmael</li> <li>The Jordanians</li> </ul> </li> <li>The Future of the Arabic Peoples</li> <li>Conclusions</li> <li>Bibliography</li> </ul>	2024	2024	Origins of Nations	19
The Morning of the Resurrection	<ul> <li>Introductory Comments</li> <li>God's Glory offered to humans!</li> <li>Resurrection in the Old Testament</li> <li>When will the resurrection occur?</li> <li>Resurrection in the New Testament</li> <li>Final Thoughts</li> <li>Appendix One. 101 Scriptures on the soon coming of Christ</li> <li>Appendix Two The Imagery of the Morning</li> <li>Appendix Three. Sunrise and Sunset in the Bible</li> <li>Recommended Reading &amp; Bibliography</li> </ul>	2009	2021	God's Plan	30

Title	Section Headings	Year First	Latest	Topic	Approx. No.
		Published	Version	0 11 01	of Pages
The Mystery of God	Introduction	2020	2021	God's Plan	20
	Various biblical mysteries				
	A counterfeit mystery of god				
	An amazing mystery of god				
	The ultimate mystery of god?				
	Conclusion				
	<ul> <li>Bibliography</li> </ul>				
	Appendix: what commentaries reveal				
The Nations of Central Asia and the Middle East	<ul> <li>Foreword</li> </ul>	1983	1992	Origin of	16
(incorporated into In Search of the Origin of	<ul> <li>Part 1: The Descendants of Edom</li> </ul>			Nations	
Nations)	<ul> <li>The Turkish Peoples</li> </ul>				
reactions)	<ul> <li>The Descendants of Teman</li> </ul>				
	<ul> <li>The Fierce Turkic Tribes</li> </ul>				
	o Turkey in Prophecy?				
	Part 2: Descendants of Ishmael				
	<ul> <li>The Peoples of Arabia</li> </ul>				
	<ul> <li>The Twelve Sons of Ishmael</li> </ul>				
	<ul> <li>The Jordanians</li> </ul>				
	<ul> <li>The Future of the Arabs</li> </ul>				
	Recommended Reading				
	Bibliography				
The Place of Safety Doctrine and the Church of	Introductory Remarks	2005	2018	Prophecy	53
God	The Increase in Biblical Knowledge (Dan 12:4)				
	History of the concept in the Church of God				
	Why a Place of Safety?				
	Relevant Scriptures concerning Biblical refuges				
	Others who believe in the concept				
	What about Petra				
	Petra Archeological Park				
	Watershed Management Suggested Reading				
	Suggested Website				
	References - Text				
	References - Websites				
	References – Documentaries				
The Sanctity of Nationhood in the Bible	Background	2018	2021	Nations vs	17
January or reactoring out the profe	Globalisation and Political Correctness – anti-God Philosophies		- <del></del>	Globalisation	
	What the Communist Taught				
	The Philosophy of Nationhood				
	Gentile Nations offered Salvation!				
	Millennial Disputes between Nations				
	Final Remarks				
	Bibliography and Suggested Reading				
	Dibilography and Suggested Reading				

Title	Section Headings	Year First Published	Latest Version	Topic	Approx. No. of Pages
The Seven Eras of Ancient Israel – Type of the Eras of the True Church?	<ul> <li>Historical Background</li> <li>Ancient Israel— optional concepts in interpreting eras</li> <li>The Ephesus Era – Beginnings</li> <li>The Smyrna Era—Persecution and Exodus</li> <li>The Pergamos Era—wonderings in the wilderness</li> <li>The Thyatira Era - Joshua &amp; former Judges</li> <li>The Sardis Era—Dead in Works—Followed by its Revival</li> <li>The Philadelphia Era— King David</li> <li>The Laodicean Era—Solomon's apostasy and division in Israel</li> <li>Are there Church Eras</li> <li>The Beast Power Rising Again!—Ancient parallels</li> <li>Strange Bulls</li> <li>A Woman Rides the Beast</li> </ul>	1996	2019	Church of God	17
The Three Heavens chart	<ul> <li>Chart</li> <li>Old Testament Scriptures</li> <li>New Testament Scriptures</li> <li>The word Paradis</li> </ul>	2014	2015	Bible Study	17
They have their Reward	<ul> <li>Introductory Remarks</li> <li>Jealousy and Envy</li> <li>Will they become your enemy?</li> <li>Relevant Scriptures</li> <li>What Commentaries Reveal</li> <li>Concluding Remarks</li> <li>Appendix. Things Narcissists Do</li> <li>References</li> </ul>	2017	2017	Christian Living	28
The Unity of the Spirit	<ul> <li>Introductory Remarks</li> <li>What Commentaries Say</li> <li>Points of Points of Doctrine</li> <li>Doctrines, Policies, Guidelines and Statements</li> <li>Concluding Remarks – Doctrines Does Matter</li> <li>How God Desires to Be Worshipped–Revealed at Shechem for the Church By Lee Lisman</li> </ul>	2023	2023	Christian Living	16
Tribulation & Day of the Lord Comparisons and Typology Chart (incorporated into <i>The Great</i> <i>German Nation</i> book)	Chart	2000	2000	Prophecy	1
True Origin of the Peoples of Eastern Europe (incorporated into <i>In Search of the Origin of Nations</i> )	Foreword Chapter 1: The Modern Identities of the Descendants of Elam and Lud  Ancient Elam The Sarmatians Who are the Poles? The Serbians and Croatians The Wends The Modern Descendants of Lud Albania	1983	1992	Origin of Nations	44

Title	Section Headings	Year First Published	Latest Version	Topic	Approx. No. of Pages
	The Future of East Europe!  Chapter 2: The Origins of the White Russians The Mitanni The land of Rashu Rosh - The Original Russians The Varangian Rus Medan The Brahmins Where are the Medes and Persians today? Origins of the Rumanians Who are the Letts? From northwest India to the Baltic Physical Anthropology of the Balts The Hungarians Chapter 3: Madai, Tubal and Meschech Isaiah's Warning The modern descendants of Madai Where is Tubal? Meschech				
	Russian claims of Ethnic Origins				
Understanding the Burnt Offering	Bibliography  • Introductory Remarks	2021	2021	Law	18
Onderstanding the burnt Offering	<ul> <li>Five Major Sacrifices</li> <li>The Burnt Offering Explained</li> <li>Concluding Remarks</li> <li>What to read to expand knowledge of the subject</li> <li>Appendix: Burnt Offerings (UCG Bible Reading Program)</li> <li>Appendix: Five Offerings of Leviticus 1-7</li> <li>Bibliography</li> </ul>				
Israel's Ethnic Heritage	<ul> <li>Abraham</li> <li>Laban</li> <li>Pharez and Zarah</li> <li>Tamar</li> <li>Ephraim &amp; Manasseh</li> <li>Moses' Wife</li> <li>Rachel and Leah</li> <li>Rahab</li> <li>Ruth</li> <li>Naamah</li> </ul>	2014	2014	Israel	13
Was Peter the Leading Apostle?	<ul> <li>What about Peter?</li> <li>The 'Big Three'</li> <li>Authority of the Apostles</li> <li>Should we follow a man?</li> <li>Council of Elders</li> <li>What did the old WCG teach?</li> </ul>	2006	2021	Church of God	33

Title	Section Headings	Year First Published	Latest Version	Topic	Approx. No. of Pages
	<ul> <li>Concluding Remarks</li> <li>Appendix: Notes on James</li> <li>Appendix: The Three James'</li> <li>Appendix: "How Christ Gives the Church its Beliefs"</li> <li>Appendix: Herbert W Armstrong's Ordination Certificate</li> <li>Appendix: Herbert W Armstrong's Credentials of Discipleship</li> <li>Bibliography</li> <li>Index</li> </ul>				
What does a Deacon do?	<ul> <li>Background</li> <li>Whom should not be chosen?</li> <li>How are deacons chosen?</li> <li>What does deacon mean and do?</li> <li>What a deacon is not</li> <li>Concluding Remarks: What happens if one does not fulfill his position as a deacon?</li> </ul>	2017	2022	Bible Study	7
What does "having a relationship" with God and Jesus mean?	<ul> <li>What is a "relationship?"</li> <li>How to have a relationship with both God the Father and Jesus Christ</li> <li>Our Daily Walk with God</li> <li>What did the old Worldwide Church of God teach?</li> <li>Concluding Remarks</li> <li>Appendix: Herbert W Armstrong's Letter of 12 December 1958</li> <li>Appendix: This is the Life - Real Abundant Living!</li> <li>Appendix: Expressing Gratitude</li> <li>References</li> </ul>	2021	2022	Bible Study	30
What does 'worshipping before your feet' mean?	<ul> <li>Introductory Comments</li> <li>Why will some acknowledge Christians?</li> <li>Old Testament Revelations</li> <li>What Commentaries Reveal</li> <li>Concluding Remarks</li> <li>References</li> </ul>	2016	2017	Bible Study	19
What happens when YOU die!	<ul> <li>Foreword</li> <li>Death and Decay</li> <li>Occurrences at Death</li> <li>No Consciousness after Death</li> <li>The LIGHT of the resurrection</li> </ul>	2014	2014	Bible Study	6
What is Inspiration?	<ul> <li>What does inspiration mean?</li> <li>How were the Scriptures inspired?</li> <li>Are Christians Inspired?</li> <li>The Meaning of Isaiah 30:21</li> <li>Are elders and pastors inspired like prophets and apostles?</li> <li>Concluding Remarks</li> <li>Bibliography</li> <li>Appendix</li> </ul>	2020	2020	Bible Study	18
What is Justice?	Introductory Remarks	2019	2021	Church Governance	34

Title	Section Headings	Year First Published	Latest Version	Topic	Approx. No. of Pages
	<ul> <li>Definition</li> <li>The Mind of Christ</li> <li>Key Scriptures</li> <li>The Biblical System         <ul> <li>Neutral courts/judiciaries</li> <li>Due Process</li> <li>Steps in due process</li> </ul> </li> <li>Rights of Non-ordained members         <ul> <li>Non-Victimisation</li> <li>Behaving with Integrity</li> <li>Judicial System</li> </ul> </li> <li>Concluding Statements</li> <li>Appendix: Extract from The Institutes of Biblical Law (vol. 3)</li> <li>Bibliography and Suggested Reading</li> </ul>				, and the second
What is meant by 'Babylon the Great is fallen, is fallen'?	<ul> <li>Introductory Remarks</li> <li>Babylon's Multiple Falls</li> <li>Daniel 4:23 – Questions for discussion</li> <li>Appendix: Revelation 18 and Associated Scriptures</li> <li>Appendix: Does Nebuchadnezzar's dream in Daniel 4 have prophetic meaning</li> <li>Appendix: Would you please explain Nebuchadnezzar's dream, as recorded in Daniel 4?</li> <li>Appendix: What Are The Times Of The Gentiles</li> </ul>	2009	2009	Prophecy	23
What is Sound Doctrine?	<ul> <li>Introductory Comments</li> <li>Questions about Doctrine</li> <li>Pertinent Scriptures</li> <li>Final Comments</li> </ul>	2016	2016	Church of God	15
What is the "Better Resurrection" in the Letter to the Hebrews?	<ul> <li>New Testament Holy Day Themes/Inferences</li> <li>The Holy Days in the Epistles to the Hebrews</li> <li>The Christian "Better" Resurrection"</li> <li>Conclusion</li> <li>Reference</li> </ul>	1997	1997	God's Plan	5
What is the Bottomless Pit?	<ul> <li>Variety of Meanings</li> <li>Revelation Structure</li> <li>Relevant Scriptures</li> <li>Original Greek</li> <li>Ancient Traditions and Mythology</li> <li>Final Comments</li> <li>Appendix: Article Extract</li> </ul>	2012	2012	Bible Study	9
What is the Day Star?	<ul> <li>Opening Remarks</li> <li>Old Testament Clues</li> <li>New Testament Fulfilments</li> <li>Lucifer – the light bringer</li> <li>Azazel and Lucifer: the fate of the fallen day star</li> <li>Concluding Remarks</li> </ul>	2014	2020	Spirit realm	20

Title	Section Headings	Year First Published	Latest Version	Topic	Approx. No. of Pages
What the Bible says about False Brethren	<ul> <li>Introductory Remarks         <ul> <li>False Brethren</li> <li>Pertinent Scriptures</li> <li>Tactics Used</li> <li>Addiction to Gossip and Slander</li> <li>Character Assassination</li> </ul> </li> <li>Hounding by False Brethren         <ul> <li>Guilt by Association</li> <li>Defamation</li> </ul> </li> <li>The People of the Lie         <ul> <li>Relevant Extracts from Peck's Book</li> <li>So What's the Difference between Abusive Ministers and False Brethren?</li> </ul> </li> <li>What a Christian can do to Counter Abuse from False Brethren</li> <li>Concluding Remarks</li> <li>References</li> </ul>	2022	2022	Bible Study	38
What will Israel be doing in the World Tomorrow?	Introduction What is the Biblical Origin of Nations? What is the significance of Shem – forefather of Israel? What is Israel's Origin? Does God deal with Israel in a dual sense: race (physical) and grace (spiritual)? Israel were called of God because they were inferior, surely? Who were the wives and handmaidens/concubines of Israel? In what way is Israel a special people? What are Israel's rewards for righteousness? Does the Church replace Israel? Doesn't the New Testament virtually ignore Israel? Will there be a Second Exodus? What will occur after the Second Exodus? Will there be a making of the New Covenant with Israel? Will Israel become a colonising people again? Isn't this being oppressive? Will Israel rule over or deal with gentile nations? Where does Ezekiel 38 & 39 fit in? Will the Tribes of Israel have specific roles? What will the land allotment be for Israel in the Millennium? What will the other nations be extant in the eternal Kingdom of God? Summary Summary Chart Bibliography & Suggested Reading	2000	2021	Prophecy	55
What will the Beast be like? Answers to	Introductory Remarks	2021	2021	Prophecy	69
Questions	<ul> <li>Are the Beast, Babylon and Mystery Babylon the same Entity?</li> <li>What is the Beast System in History?</li> <li>What is the Timeline for the end-time Beast Power and its exploits?</li> </ul>				

Title	Section Headings	Year First Published	Latest Version	Topic	Approx. No. of Pages
	<ul> <li>Which Nations will comprise the final Beast?</li> <li>What will the Beast look and be like?</li> <li>Where will the Final Beast Leader originate from?</li> <li>What will be the Ideology (Religious, Social, Economic) of the coming Beast?</li> <li>What Symbols and Regalia will the Future Beast Power use?</li> <li>Which City will be the Capital of the Beast System?</li> <li>How does the Final Beast/Anti-Christ (and False Prophet) Compare to Christ?</li> <li>Will the Beast leader be homosexual?</li> <li>Why will the Beast attack the House of Israel?</li> <li>Is a German-led United Europe capable of attacking the House of Israel soon?</li> <li>Why will the Beast turn upon the Great False Church?</li> <li>What are the Rival Views for a US of Europe. Which will succeed?</li> <li>Is Islam the Beast?</li> <li>Concluding Comments</li> <li>Appendix. Attempted Conquests of Britain</li> <li>Appendix. Quotes from The Book of Revelation by Clarence Larkin</li> <li>Appendix. Select Church of God Literature on the Beast</li> <li>References</li> </ul>				
When do the armies of Ezek 38 & 39 invade Israel? A study (incorporated into <i>The Great German Nation</i> book)	<ul> <li>Various Interpretations</li> <li>What Commentaries Say</li> <li>Why will the forces of Ezekiel 38 &amp; 39 invade the Holy Land?</li> <li>Typology Contained within the Book of Joshua</li> <li>Concluding Remarks</li> <li>Appendix: Parallel or Similar Scriptures</li> <li>Appendix: Ezekiel Chapters 38 &amp; 39 with comments</li> <li>References</li> </ul>	2001	2021	Prophecy	38
When is Deleavening to be Undertaken?	<ul> <li>Introductory Comments</li> <li>When to Deleaven?</li> <li>No Leaven for Seven Days</li> <li>The Symbolism of Leaven</li> <li>Concluding Remarks</li> <li>Appendix. Beware the Leaven of the Pharisees</li> <li>References</li> </ul>	2024	2024	Doctrine	19
When the Bad News finally reaches YOU!	<ul> <li>YOUR future</li> <li>The Greatest Double-Cross in World History</li> <li>This will happen to YOU</li> <li>YOUR captivity – what now?</li> <li>Suggested Reading</li> </ul>	2009	2009	Prophecy	26
When the Good News finally reaches YOU!	YOUR captivity and enslavement in foreign lands     A Gospel of Hope proclaimed during the Great Tribulation     Your and Israel's awakening to identity     Let My People Go! The Coming Exodus     Suggested Reading	2012	2012	Prophecy	40

Title	Section Headings	Year First Published	Latest Version	Topic	Approx. No. of Pages
	<ul> <li>Appendix 1: Relevant Scriptures on the Second Exodus</li> <li>Appendix 2: Scriptures on Deliverance</li> <li>Appendix 3: Israel's Plea for Deliverance</li> </ul>				
When Utopia finally reaches YOU!	<ul> <li>The Initial Years of the Messiah's Reign</li> <li>The Wonderful World Tomorrow</li> <li>The House of Israel's Role in the Millennium</li> <li>Suggested Reading</li> <li>Appendix: Does the Church replace Israel?</li> </ul>	2013	2013	Prophecy	40
Where are the Levites Today?	<ul> <li>INTRODUCTORY REMARKS</li> <li>ANCIENT LEVI         <ul> <li>Levis's Background</li> <li>Descendants of Levi</li> <li>Suggested Further Reading on the Tribes of Israel</li> </ul> </li> <li>MIGRATIONS OF LEVI         <ul> <li>The Cimmerians</li> <li>The Druids − Descendants of the Levites?</li> <li>Suggested Further Reading on the Welsh</li> </ul> </li> <li>OUTLINE HISTORY OF THE BRYTHONS AND WELSH         <ul> <li>The Phoenician element in Wales</li> <li>Links between Welsh and Hebrew Languages?</li> <li>Suggested Further Reading on Welsh History</li> </ul> </li> <li>WELSH CHARACTER AND ATTRIBUTES         <ul> <li>Welsh Attributes − Similarities to Levi</li> <li>National and Tribal Emblems</li> <li>Suggested Further Reading</li> </ul> </li> <li>FUTURE OF THE LEVITES         <ul> <li>Suggested Further Reading</li> </ul> </li> <li>CONCLUDING REMARKS</li> <li>APPENDIX. WHO WERE THE CIMMERIANS/WELSH? TRIBE OF LEVI</li> <li>BIBLIOGRAPHY</li> </ul>	2022	2022	Origin of Nations	44
Where are the Edomites today?	<ul> <li>Introduction</li> <li>Origin of the Doctrine</li> <li>The Descendants of Teman</li> <li>The Turkic Tribes of Central Asia</li> <li>Togarmah of the North Quarters (Ezek 38:6)</li> <li>Mysterious Gog</li> <li>The Turkic Peoples in Prophecy?</li> <li>Conclusions</li> <li>Appendix. Old Church of God Citations</li> <li>Bibliography</li> </ul>	2023	2023	Origin of Nations	31
Where are the 'Lost' Tribes of Israel in the Modern World?	<ul> <li>Introduction</li> <li>Why did God call Israel to great blessings?</li> <li>The Genesis of Israel</li> <li>Where are the Covenant People of Israel today?</li> </ul>	2021	2021	Origin of Nations	48

Title	Section Headings	Year First Published	Latest Version	Topic	Approx. No. of Pages
	<ul> <li>How the Israelites ended up in Northwest Europe</li> <li>Israel's new homeland</li> <li>Is the Throne of David still with us today?</li> <li>Israel and the Kingdom of God on Earth</li> <li>Israel's coming Global rule</li> <li>Final Words</li> <li>Appendix. Suggested Reading List</li> <li>References</li> </ul>				
Which Commandments do the Churches of God observer/teach and not observe/teach? And why?	Introductory Comments Chart: List of Commandments and their Application/Understanding  • The 248 Positive Mitzvot / Commandments: "The Do's"  • The 365 Negative Mizvot/ Commandments: "The Don'ts" References and Suggested Reading	2018	2018	Law	65
Who are the East Asians, Polynesians and American Indians? (incorporated into In Search of the Origin of Nations)	Chapter 1: The Origin of the Nations of South-east Asia  The Brown Mongoloids of South-east Asia  Ashkenaz  Riphath  Togarmah of the North Quarters  Recommended Reading  Chapter 2: Populous China  Ancient Magog  Mysterious Gog  The Peoples of Kittim  The Kittim in Prophecy  Recommended Reading  Chapter 3: Where are the Descendants of Elishah Today?  The Ionian Greeks  An Eastern Elishah  Migrations into the Pacific  Origins of the Name "Malay"  Which Route did Elishah Take?  Polynesian Middle Eastern Origins  Recommended Reading  Chapter 4: The Amazing American Indians  A Variety of Origins  The Red-Skins of Thrace  The Ancient Minoan Civilzation  The Isles of the Aegean  American Indians in Ancient Scotland?  The Picts Disappear?  The Blonde Indians!  White Visitors to the Americas?  The Missing Link  The Final Proof	1983	1992	Origin of Nations	31

Title	Section Headings	Year First Published	Latest Version	Topic	Approx. No. of Pages
	<ul> <li>Canaanites Too</li> <li>The Hivites</li> <li>Recommended Reading</li> <li>Bibliography</li> </ul>				
Who are the Germans? (incorporated into <i>The Great German Nation</i> book)	Foreword  1. Mysterious Origins of the Assyrians 2. The Fearsome Assyrians 3. Migrations Into Central Europe 4. The Hittite Empire 5. The Modern Assyro-Hittites 6. What is Germany's Destiny? 7. The Future of Germany Concluding Remarks Appendix 1 A List of Important Biblical References to the Assyrians Appendix 2 A List of Researchers Who Believe in the Assyrian or Hittite Origins of the Gerr Appendix 3 The Khattie Tribe of North-West India Appendix 4 A Short Commentary on the Book of Nahum Appendix 5 Charts on the Chronology of Genesis and the Generations of the Patriarchs Bibliography	1983	1992	Origin of Nations	102
Who are the Japanese?	<ul> <li>Introduction</li> <li>Ancient Javan and Tarshish</li> <li>The Western Tarshish</li> <li>The Eastern Tarshish</li> <li>The Spaniards of Asia</li> <li>The Hebrews and the Land of the Rising Sun</li> <li>Japan's Prophetic Destiny</li> <li>Conclusions</li> <li>Appendix. Ancient Japanese and Israelite Contacts</li> <li>Appendix. The Yellow Peril (Japan) and Bible Prophecy</li> <li>Bibliography</li> </ul>	2023	2023	Origin of Nations	28
Who are the Latvians and Lithuanians?	<ul> <li>Introduction</li> <li>Abraham's Eastern Descendants</li> <li>The Letushim</li> <li>From Northwest India to the Baltic</li> <li>Physical Anthropology of the Balts</li> <li>Leum's Descendants</li> <li>Conclusions</li> <li>Bibliography</li> </ul>	2022	2022	Origin of Nations	20
Who are the Mysterious Sukkiim?	Introduction     Cushite Migrations     The Sukkiim in east Africa     The Sukulumbe and Sakalava tribes     Final Comments	2022	2022	Origin of Nations	18

Title	Section Headings	Year First Published	Latest Version	Topic	Approx. No. of Pages
	Bibliography				
Who are the Peoples of Rosh?	<ul> <li>Introduction</li> <li>The Mitanni</li> <li>The Land of Rashu</li> <li>Rosh - the original Russians</li> <li>The Varangian Rus</li> <li>Medan</li> <li>The Brahmins</li> <li>Where are the Medes and Persians Today?</li> <li>Conclusions</li> <li>Appendix. Territorial Expansion of Russia</li> <li>Bibliography</li> </ul>	2022	2022	Origin of Nations	26
The True Roots and Origins of the Scots	<ul> <li>INTRODUCTORY REMARKS</li> <li>ANCIENT JUDAH</li> <li>Descendants of Judah</li> <li>Judah's Mental Characteristics</li> <li>Physical Appearance of Judahites</li> <li>Red, ginger and red-brown hair</li> <li>Leadership Attributes</li> <li>Suggested Further Reading on the Tribes of Israel</li> <li>MIGRATIONS OF JUDAH</li> <li>The Ossettians</li> <li>Physical Anthropology of the Scots</li> <li>Continental Celts not British Celts</li> <li>Suggested Further Reading on the Scots and Celts</li> <li>BRITISH ROYAL THRONE</li> <li>Jacob's Pillar</li> <li>Is the Throne of David still with us today?</li> <li>Suggested Further Reading on Britain's Royal Throne</li> <li>NATIONAL AND TRIBAL EMBLEMS</li> <li>Suggested Further Reading on Scottish National Emblems</li> <li>SCOTTISH CHARACTER AND ATTRIBUTES</li> <li>Outline of Scottish History</li> <li>Scottish Attributes – Similarities to Judah</li> <li>Suggested Further Reading on the Scots</li> <li>FUTURE OF THE SCOT</li> <li>The coming Exodus</li> <li>CONCLUDING REMARKS</li> <li>APPENDIX. WHAT DID JUDAHITES LOOK LIKE?</li> <li>APPENDIX. JACOB'S PILLAR</li> </ul>	2003	2022	Origin of Nations	92
Wild Beasts in the Millennium	BIBLIOGRAPHY     Introduction	2002	2020	Prophecy	21
with peasts in the windinging	A Golden Age     Carnivores in the World Tomorrow?	2002	2020	Tropriecy	21

Title	Section Headings	Year First	Latest	Topic	Approx. No.
		Published	Version		of Pages
Wilhelm II. A Type of the Final Emperor	<ul> <li>Appendix: Lioness looks after her prey</li> <li>Introduction</li> <li>German Confederation Arises</li> <li>World War One and Germany's 'Place in the Sun'</li> <li>Emperor Wilhelm II's Global Ambitions</li> <li>Austro-Hungary – allies of the German Reich</li> <li>Views about the Jews</li> <li>Wilhelm II's entry into Jerusalem on a white horse</li> </ul>	2021	2021	Prophecy	36
	<ul> <li>Final Analysis</li> <li>Appendix. Plans to invade Britain and America</li> <li>German plans against Britain and America go back a long time!</li> <li>The invasion plans which have been hidden for a century</li> <li>The Rise and Fall of the Third Reich, by William L. Shirer, p. 782</li> <li>Kaiser Wilhelm's Germany Had Plan to Take New York</li> <li>The Zimmermann Telegram", The Independent</li> <li>Germans planned U.S. invasion century ago", The Daily Times, 12 January 2003</li> <li>Germany's 1915 Terrorist Cell in America</li> <li>References</li> </ul>				
Will the Resurrected Sons & Daughters of God die again?	<ul> <li>Introduction</li> <li>Resurrected Children of God – to die again?</li> <li>No more sin and suffering</li> </ul>	2002	2002	Bible Study	2
Will the Saints Rule from Heaven or on Earth?	<ul> <li>Introductory Comments</li> <li>Early Jewish Beliefs</li> <li>What Researchers Say</li> <li>Arguments for Ruling from Heaven</li> <li>Is the Wedding Supper only a Metaphor or Dual?</li> <li>Pertinent Scriptures</li> <li>Concluding Remarks</li> <li>References</li> </ul>	2025	2025	Doctrine	24
Will the Temple, Sacrifices & Tribal Allotments be restored during the Millennium?	<ul> <li>Introductory Thoughts</li> <li>Is the Temple of Ezekiel 40-48 Millennial or Pre-Millennial?</li> <li>Supplementary Information Concerning the Temple</li> <li>Will the Sacrificial Sacrifices be Restored?</li> <li>Tribal Land Allotments</li> <li>Final Remarks</li> <li>Bibliography</li> </ul>	2018	2021	Bible Study	24
Youth and their Elders in the Church	<ul> <li>Introduction</li> <li>Scriptures on the elderly</li> <li>Should we be 'led by the spirit'?</li> <li>What does the Bible say?</li> <li>What about Jeremiah's Youth?</li> <li>Concluding Remarks</li> </ul>	2016	2018	Church	13

### Study Paper, Table and Chart Listing and Outlines

		Approx. No.
Published	Version	of Pages
		<b>5444 pages</b> (inc.
		appendices etc)

# **MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS**

No.	Title	Subject/Comment	Year of latest	No. of pages
			version	
1.	Chart Comparing UCG and RCG Fundamentals of Belief		1997	6
2.	Citations in other works and websites & List of Articles Published		2015	7
3.	Commiserations concerning Mum's passing away that were sent to her son		2015	18
4.	Dad's attributes and background – a son's perspective		2019	26
5.	List of AC and WCG Theses and other Papers/Articles etc	The list is continued on the website, not in the Word	2013	7
		document		
6.	List of hard copies of old WCG literature I need to complete my library		2013	1
7.	List of Presentations Given		2015	2
8.	List of Unfinished Articles and Papers	47 unfinished articles	2015	2
9.	List of Useful Published books by Church of God members and former members	The list is continued on the website, not in the Word	2013	4
		document		
10.	Model Church Working Group Guidelines		1997	4
11.	Mum's attributes – a son's perspective and memory		2015	48
12.	Presentation and other feedback		2016	12
13.	Utilising the Members in the Local Congregations and in the Work: A system to		1997	17
	ensure opportunities for all			
14.	Various papers on Church matters		2021	+100
15.	Spiritual Wolves article		2022	64

## **POWERPOINT PRESENTATIONS**

#### **Church of God History:**

- The Congregations in the East (inc Asia Minor) and their apostasy
- Genesis of the re-formation of the Church of God in the mid-1800s-1880s
- The Church of God advances 1880s-1930s
- Visit to the Churches of God 2017-18
- · Greenberry George Rupert. Man of God
- A Tribute to Richard Nickels

#### **End-Time Prophecy:**

- Europe's Rise and Australia's Demise
- A Woman Rides the Beast
- The Holy Roman Empire Rises Again!
- Cush in East Africa
- Watch World Events!

### Millennial Reign of the Messiah:

- The Messiah and the Nations
- The early years of the Millennium
- Animals in the World Tomorrow
- Cities in the World Tomorrow

#### Other Presentations:

- Get Ready for the Resurrection
- Temple Symbolism in Revelation
- Southland of the Holy Spirit



# Study Paper, Table and Chart Listing and Outlines

By Craig M White

History Research Projects
GPO Box 864, Sydney, Australia 2001
www.friendsofsabbath.org

No limitation is placed upon reproduction of this document except that it must be reproduced in its entirety without modification or deletions. The publisher's name and address, copyright notice and this message must be included. It may be freely distributed but must be distributed without charge to the recipient.